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Dear Investors,

2019 was a very peculiar year in the housing 
sector. Faced with a growing gap between 
supply and demand in the country, national home 
prices increased by 7.7% in the year. Housing 
supply decreased 14.0% compared to 2018, 
partly explained by reduced investments in the 
private real estate sector given the limitations in 
access to funding in the sector and a slowdown 
in subsidized housing construction. Thus, during 
2019 only 189 thousand homes were registered 
in the national housing registry (Registro Único de 
Viviendas – RUV), while the demand for new homes 
is estimated at approximately 600 thousand units 
per year. This is the largest supply-demand gap in 
over 10 years of history of this data, and directly 
impacts the housing deficit in the country, which 
is estimated at 9.4 million homes.

On the other hand, the number of mortgages for 
new homes of Infonavit, Fovissste, and traditional 
banks grew 20.7% year on year as of December 
2019. The combination of less housing supply and 
the fundamentals of housing demand coupled 
with the drive to provide mortgages to potential 
home buyers, presents a continuity opportunity 
for Vinte’s long term growth trends. 

It is also worth mentioning that as part of 
Vinte´s institutionalization and our continuous 
search for improvement, in 2019 we decided to 
separate the positions of CEO and Chairman of 

the Board. Starting in January 2020 I assumed 
the responsibilities of Executive President and 
will focus on strategic issues related to Vinte´s 
vision, expansion, innovation, digitalization, and 
long-term strategy. I will also continue to be the 
Chairman of the Board. René Jaime Mungarro, 
who is a founding partner and was previously 
our COO, succeeds me as CEO, focusing on 
day-to-day operations, short and medium-term 
strategies, and their implementation.

Undoubtedly, 2020 is a year in which we expect 
a significant economic contraction globally, for 
Mexico and for the housing construction industry 
in the country. At Vinte we have experienced two 
periods of very complex external conditions. 
The first was in 2008 and 2009 with the global 
financial crisis, the reduction of Mexico’s GDP by 
5.4% and the exit of the Sofoles as a fundamental 
part of the financing chain for the housing sector 
and Mexican families. The second was in 2013 
and 2014 with the change of rules for federally 
administered subsidies and the default of most 
developers with a high dependence on the 
subsidies.

Today at Vinte we are better prepared to face 
the macroeconomic contraction than we were in 
these other two historical situations, mainly due 
to the experience gained on those occasions. We 
have divided the strategy to confront the current 
situation into two parts. First, during 2020 the 
vision is to maintain a solid balance sheet and

Message from 
the Executive 
President
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focus on positive cash flow. Second, during 
2021/2022 the vision is to turn the crisis into an 
opportunity with higher growth than we would 
have originally planned and thereby gaining more 
market share. This is very similar to what we did 
in 2008 and 2013, with the only difference being 
that today Infonavit is more solid than ever and 
has been identified as one of the most important 
government entities to boost the economy.

At Vinte we have continuously promoted innovation 
and technology. Today we have managed to 
capture the benefits from these innovations far 
more than we would have thought. For example, in 
2018 we implemented the Cisco Webex system at 
Vinte to enable fluid communication between the 
different geographies and business areas (Cisco 
2019 Success Story). In March we hosted186 
video conferences for internal meetings with up to 
42 participants in some meetings with executives 
and managers, and in April we held 277 internal 
video conferences, including the Board of 
Directors meeting.

Another key example of innovation and technology 
is sales through digital channels. We recently 
broke our own digital channels influx records by 
reaching 54% of the total influx for Vinte; 35% 
of home reservations and 29% of titling that was 
carried out was with clients who arrived to Vinte 
via digital media (compared to 21% a few months 
ago). Nowadays, the entire process can be carried 
out virtually (including tours of developments and 
homes). Our Chatbot made its first sales in April 
2020, after 2.5 years of development from the first 
version of Chabot (with continuous improvements 
in the interface towards digital intelligence).

We are very pleased to have received a letter of 
interest to invest from one of the world’s leading 
impact investment funds, focused on the 17 UN 
Sustainable Development Goals. At Vinte we 
have maintained our long-term sustainable vision, 
as it is the essence of our business model. In 

2020 we will continue to promote innovation and 
sustainability, as we know that in the long term 
this will open up new interesting opportunities for 
organic growth.

Sergio Leal Aguirre,
Executive President
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Dear Investors,

We finished 2019 very satisfied for once again 
meeting our guidance, which had been increased 
recently given the operating trends of the year. 
The 10.1% annual revenue growth achieved in 
2019 was primarily driven by an average price 
increase of 18.2% versus 2018. Net margin for 
the year was 14.2%, compared to the 14.9% 
from 2018, mainly affected by the consolidation 
of Jardines Mayakoba as we now own 75% of 
the project. Actually, one of the highlights of the 
year for us was that we were able to close the 
acquisition of an additional 25% of this project, 
taking the control position of this important 
development. It is worth noting that, as a result of 
this consolidation, Vinte´s Net Debt/EBITDA ratio 
closed the year at 2.39x.

We started operations in Monterrey too. We are 
proud of the results we have seen so far and have 
high expectations for this project. We saw the first 
two house sales at the end of 2019. We expect to 
see a more mature titling level by 2021. In Playa 
del Carmen we saw delays in the start of housing 
construction due to setbacks in the definition of 
the infrastructure projects for water and drainage 
that were defined for the project. This implied 
we didn’t see any house titles signed in 2019. In 
2020 we already saw the first titles signed for the 
middle income project in Playa del Carmen.

Given the current outlook for the country and the 
industry, the strategy for the rest of this year is 
very clear: focus on generating positive cash flow 
and strenghten the balance sheet. This strategy is 

not new to Vinte, in 2009 and 2010 we generated 
positive cash flow, as well as in 2014 and 2015.

In the face of the health crisis, we have prioritized 
the health and safety of our employees, 
customers, suppliers, and the communities where 
we operate. Because of this, we are supporting 
and implementing all the sanitary preventative 
measures imposed by the authorities. Furthermore, 
we have implemented specific operating and 
financial measures to adapt to the current 
situation and prepare for the near future. We have 
reduced administrative expenses by replacing 
face-to-face meetings with virtual meetings, and 
by reducing our staff’s travel plans, among other 
things.

We feel prepared to face the current crisis. Our 
diversification by geography, mortgage source, 
and home segment gives us greater stability. 
Our solid financial position supports us. We will 
continue to work to meet the basic housing needs 
of Mexicans through our sustainable and flexible 
business model, while caring and optimizing the 
profitability of our shareholders and bondholders.

We will continue to work on achieving the best 
possible long-term returns for our shareholders 
and bondholders. We are focused on turning 
the crisis into an opportunity, but prioritizing risk 
reduction in the short term.

René Jaime Mungarro,
CEO

Message from 
the CEO
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Vinte Viviendas Integrales (“Vinte”) is a vertically 
integrated land developer and homebuilder 
focused on profitability.   It operates throughout 
the entire housing industry value chain, from 
land acquisition, conducting feasibility analyses, 
obtaining permits and licenses, urbanization, 
design, construction, commercialization of homes, 
as well as the promotion of life in community. 

With over 17 years in operation, Vinte develops 
sustainable housing projects under the integral 
communities concept that offers its residents 
a higher quality of life. Infrastructure, roads, 
educational facilities, shopping centers, and 
recreational areas are strategically distributed and 
harmoniously integrated within the existing urban 
fabric, while also providing connectivity services, 
sustainable housing technology, and community 
development.

The Company’s business model is based on 
diversification by geography, product type, 
socioeconomic segment, and mortgage source, 
to achieve flexibility and dynamically adapt to 
the market environment, reducing the volatility 
of its revenue and minimizing risks related to 
the industry. The Company’s housing offer 
targets three different socioeconomic segments 
(Affordable-Entry Level, Middle-Income and 
Middle Higher Income), always maintaining high-
quality and providing amenities regardless of the 
housing segments.

About
VINTE
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Established on August 16th, 2001 in Mexico 
City, Vinte is currently organized as a Sociedad 
Anónima Bursátil de Capital Variable (Publicly- 
traded Corporation), and it is headquartered in 
Downtown Santa Fe, Mexico City, Mexico.

The stock of VINTE Viviendas Integrales S.A.B. 
de C.V., is registered at the Registro Nacional de 
Valores (National Securities Registry), which is part 
of the Comisión Nacional Bancaria y de Valores 
(National Banking and Securities Commission).

Our Purpose

In Vinte we aspire that everyone is able to lead the 
life they choose, where people in our communities 
care for each other and for the environment, 
developing their maximum potential.

Our Sustainable and Social Vision

For us, sustainability consists of creating Vinte 
Communities that generate positive social, 
economic, and environmental impacts through 
a socially responsible operation and the use of 
environmentally friendly products.

Vinte’s purpose is to increase people’s quality 
of life, promoting sustainable integral housing 
developments that have the right technology, 
equipment, and high-quality amenities that 
promote the development of community life.

In this way, the Company ensures that the 
stakeholders, i.e. customers, collaborators, 
business partners, authorities, communities, 
financial partners, and investors, obtain solid 
and sustained long-term added value, promoting 
social welfare and joining the fight against climate 
change.

Our
Values

Passion
We are committed, we act with determination, 
we take care of every detail, and we focus 
on meeting the real needs of our customers.

Belonging
Together we are worth more than apart; 
we develop integrated communities, 
we promote solidarity; and we generate 
satisfaction and happiness. 

Innovation
We are visionaries and creative, we open 
gaps by challenging the conventional, our 
dreams inspire change for the benefit of all 
as well as the environment.

Transcendence
We want to make history through our daily 
efforts, generating shared value.
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• Vinte’s establishment and start 
of operations.

History and 
Awards

2001

2008

2005

2003

2006

2009

• First titled home in Real del Sol 
development.

• Deloitte appointed as external 
auditor (continuing to serve as such 
nowadays).

• Pioneer of digital mortgage.

• Entered into alliances to include 
computer and internet in 
homes.

• National Housing Award given 
to Real del Sol development 
(best housing practices with a special 
mention for technology).

• 2007 National Housing 
Award given to Real del Cid 
development in the category of 
best executed project.

• Direct investment from 
the International Finance 
Corporation (IFC) amounting 
up to 10.6% of Vinte’s capital 
stock.

• Pioneers of Green Mortgage.

• Visit of President Mr. 
Vicente Fox to Real del Sol 
development.

• National Housing Award given 
to Real del Sol development 
(best housing practices with a special 
mention for technology).

• Study of Vinte’s business model 
conducted by the Universities of 
California and Manchester.

• Secured sources of funding for 
housing R&D.

• First titled home of Real del Cid 
development.

• Since 2009 Vinte ranks among 
the 500 most important 
companies in Mexico.

• 2008 National Housing 
Award given to Real Castell 
development in the category of 
best executed project.

• National Housing Award given 
to Real Toledo development 
in the category of sustainable 
housing development



• National Housing Award given 
to Real Ibiza development in the 
category of sustainable housing 
development.

• Ernst & Young Award for best 
housing construction.

• Recognition from the 
Government of Canada for 
leadership in reducing the 
effects of climate change.

• Visit of President Mr. Felipe 
Calderón to Real Ibiza 
development.

• G20 Challenge on Inclusive 
Business Innovation.

• Sustainable Investment of the 
Year, Financial Times / IFC, 
Sustainable Finance Awards 
nominations.

• First certification for EDGE 
(Excellence in Design for Greater 
Efficiencies).

• Inclusive Business Leaders 
Awards, Tokyo Japan 2012.

• First credit for construction 
originated under the ECOCASA 
project.

• National Housing Award given 
to Real Solare development 
in the category of sustainable 
housing development.

• National Housing Award given 
to Real Verona development in 
the category of affordable-entry 
level housing.

• Entered into a Joint Venture 
with OHL Desarrollos for the 
development of the Ciudad 
Mayakoba project in Playa del 
Carmen, Quintana Roo.

• Introduction of the first Hybrid 
Zero-Emission sustainable 
housing model.

• Issuance of the first sustainable 
bond by a housing company 
in Latin America for 800 million 
pesos with 5-year term at fixed 
rate of 9.83%.

• Second and third issuances of 
sustainable bonds for a total of 
Ps.700 million, maturing in 3.7 
and 7 years and issued at rates 
of TIIE 28 + 228 bps and 10%.

• Shares subscription and entry 
of PROPARCO as a new 
shareholder with a stake of 
6.9%.

• Obtained Change the World 
recognition by Fortune 
magazine.

• Purchase of an additional 25% 
stake in Jardines de Ciudad 
Mayakoba.

• First corporate debt placement 
of Vinte in the Mexican Stock 
Exchange for 100 million pesos.

• 2011 New Millennium Award 
– International Trophy for 
Construction.

• 2011 Housing Men and Women 
Award.

• First titled home at the 
Real Solare development in 
Queretaro.

• Urban Development and 
Housing Award of the State of 
Quintana Roo, Mexico.

• IPO in the Mexican Stock 
Exchange 
(Global issuance for a total 
amount of 1,220 million pesos).

• Corporate debt placements in 
the Mexican Stock Exchange 
with 5- and 10-year terms at a 
variable rate of TIIE + 230 bps 
and a fixed rate of 9.70%.

2010

2012

2014

2017

2019

2011

2013

2016

2018
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2019 Highlights

Sustainable
Bonds

On June 5th, known as the World Environment Day, 
Vinte successfully issued long term sustainable debt 
(green and social impact bonds) for a total of $700 
million pesos in the BMV through two sustainable 
facilities that received an A+ credit rating from HR 
Ratings and Verum, a favorable sustainable opinion 
from Sustainalytics, and sustainable rating XB1+ (the 
highest possible) from HR ratings.

Shares Subscription
and PROPARCO

On June 18th, Vinte carried out a subscription of 
12,867,648 shares in line with the approval received 
on its General Annual Shareholders Meeting. Vinte´s 
current shareholders subscribed 578,764 new shares 
at a price of $27.20. The remaining total (12,288,884 
shares) were offered to the French Development 
Bank “PROPARCO” at the same price and were fully 
subscribed. Thus, PROPARCO acquired a stake 
of 6.9% in the Company (investing the maximum 
of USD 20 mm proposed in the letter of interest 
previously sent to the Company) in order to promote 
Vinte´s sustainable business model.

Change the World 2019

On August 19th, Vinte was recognized by Fortune 
magazine as one of the 52 companies (incorporated 
in 18 countries) that are changing the world through 
social impact. Fortune considers factors such as: 
Measurable Social Impact, Business Profitability, 
Innovation, and Corporate Integration.

Jardines de
Ciudad Mayakoba

On October 17th, Vinte acquired an additional 25% of 
the trust that owns “Jardines de Ciudad Mayakoba” 
from OHLDM, S.A. de C.V. (“Grupo OHL”), thereby 
increasing its participation to 75%. Simultaneously, 
Operadora Lakahn, a vehicle managed and owned  
by BK Partners, acquired the remaining 25% as part 
of a joint venture agreement with Vinte. Additionally, 
both companies agreed to capitalize the JV vehicle to 
boost its growth.

Separation of
Functions Executive
President-CEO

Through a unanimous Board approval, starting 
January 2020, Sergio Leal Aguirre, until then Vinte’s 
CEO, assumed the position of Executive President 
and Chairman of the Board and René Jaime Mungarro 
became our new CEO.

Improved Risk
Rating from
Sustainalytics

In Sustainalytics’ last annual review, Vinte improved 
its Risk Rating from Medium to Low, reaching the fifth 
percentile within the real estate developers group 
globally (the first percentile being the lowest possible 
risk level for a company).
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As mentioned before, Vinte’s business model aims 
to promote life in communities with a clear vision of 
sustainability and environmental protection, while 
offering sustainable solutions and technologies 
within its communities and housing models. To 
achieve this, we combine our efforts in what we 
define as “Integral Communities”.

The concept of Integral Communities 
is based on 5 key aspects:

Business
Model

Location

The Company uses a research model which 
is applied to all current and potential markets. 
Internal research, validated by third party 
independent consultants, assesses market 
potential in accordance with supply and demand 
forces, consumer preferences, financing appetite, 
and competitors’ presence.  

Location SecurityIntegral 
Design

Equipment & 
Amenities

Promotion of Life in 
Community

2003

2019
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Security

Vinte is committed to providing peace and 
security to their communities. It shows its 
commitment through integrating security systems 
into the communities’ life. It provides security 
checkpoints in the main and only entrances 
to the developments as well as builds sub-
divisions into gated communities once inside the 
developments. These precautionary measures 
help the inhabitants of our communities to live 
more peacefully.

102-2

Integral Design

Vinte has architectural design and urban planning 
specialists who design attractive developments 
that, due to their features provide a higher quality 
of life for all residents.

Our developments include strategically located 
schools, as well as sports and commercial facilities. 
All home models have high-quality architectural 
features, and in some cases homeowners may 
even expand or modify their homes under certain 
guidelines.
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Equipment and Amenities

The Company since its beginnings has offered 
innovative and high-quality products in its 
developments, like when it used to security 
cameras, controlled access, or telemetry (real-
time measurement of electricity, gas and water 
consumption).

Today we continue to innovate in terms of 
equipment and amenities. For example, all the 
homes we will develop in Monterrey will have 
solar panel technology, which reduces the carbon 
footprint of our developments as well as offers 
material savings to our clients.

Life in Community 

The Company provides this service in all markets 
where it operates. The objective is to maintain 
the quality of life and sense of belonging to the 
community within the development, including 
housing image preservation parameters, social 
integration, and community development. 
Moreover, Vinte has undertaken the commitment 
to not only deliver the home, but also impart 
introduction courses to homeowners and control 
urban quality. The latter is fundamental for our 
developments to see capital gains over time and 
maintain our pricing strategy. Additionally, this 
business model has led Vinte to win eight national 
housing awards, including the Sustainable 
Housing Development Award and the Affordable 
Entry-Level Housing Award; two regional awards, 
including the Development and Housing Award 
of from the State of Quintana Roo: and four 
international awards such as the G20 Challenge 
on Inclusive Business Leaders Award in Japan. 
Also, in 2019 we were recognized by Fortune 
magazine within their “Change the World” awards.

To see some of our clients’ testimonials, you can 
go here.

“The implementation of 
these services, along with the 
innovation of complementary 
products and technologies, 
are a key factor in generating 
capital gains in the Vinte 
communities ”

MORE THAN  42,000 FAMILIES
LIVE IN A VINTE COMMUNITY

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ot3SRPmKdmI
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Housing Value and Net Margin per Project, Mexico City.

VINTE’s Capital Gains Case Study 
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Housing Development Model
102-2
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Vinte has registered the following trademarks with the Instituto Mexicano de Propiedad 
Industrial (Mexican Institute of Industrial Property) on a 10-year term starting from filing 
date; trademarks whose term has exceeded such period have been renewed or are 
under renewal process for periods of the same duration:

Registered Trademarks

Trade Mark Registration Date

VINTE (y diseño) August 17, 2001

VIVIENDAS INTEGRALES July 19, 2002

REAL PARAÍSO RESIDENCIAL November 14, 2003

INTERPLAN (y diseño) July 04, 2003

REAL PARAÍSO RESIDENCIAL (y diseño) August 24, 2004

CONECTHA CONECTIVIDAD PARA EL HABITAT (y diseño) October 29, 2004

G7 HABITAT (y diseño) May 27, 2005

G7 HABITAT May 27, 2005

G7 HOME (y diseño) May 29, 2007

G7 Community May 29, 2007

G7 Habitat Home Technology (y diseño) May 29, 2007

G7 November 29, 2007

G7 HABITAT (y diseño tridimensional) January 19, 2010

G7 HABITAT (y diseño) January 07, 2010

Emobel (y diseño) October 27, 2011

Real Valencia (y diseño) February 19, 2013

Vinte una Vida como debería ser la Vida (y diseño) December 10, 2014

Real Segovia April 25, 2014

Real Granada (y diseño) February 12, 2014

REAL PARAÍSO COMUNIDADES (y diseño) January 23, 2014

Inmobiliaria Vinte Una Vida como debería ser la Vida (y diseño) March 10, 2015

Queralt October 13, 2015

Residencial Carrara June 02, 2016

Residencial Montalto June 02, 2016

Residencial Catania June 02, 2016

Inmobiliaria Vinte Para Todos (y diseño) December 07, 2017

CASA HÍBRIDA December 11, 2018

Fundación Vinte July 10, 2019

#HAZLOTUYO February 27, 2020
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Our developments are 
environmentally certified before 
construction starts.

For each project, VINTE performs an analysis 
of environmental impacts before starting 
construction. In them, we study the project 
structure, the environmental impacts it will have, 
the applicable environmental regulation, as well 
as the preventive measures, mitigation strategies, 
and offsetting measures that will be carried out 
during the different stages of the project.

Before construction begins, each project requires 
an Environmental Impact Statement (MIA for 
its acronym in Spanish) from the Ministry of 
the Environment. To obtain this authorization, 
the authorities carry out an environmental 
impact assessment under the MIA’s protocol, 
adhering to applicable regulations including 
the General Law of Ecological Balance and 
Environmental Protection (Articles 28 to 35 Bis 
3), the state environmental laws and regulations 
on environmental impact assessments, and the 
Federal Law of Administrative Procedure. 

Furthermore, in line with its shared value model, 
Vinte builds homes which are certified by IFC 
EDGE, Eco-Casa, or “Hipoteca Verde”, as well as 
adhering to the Green Bond Principles under the 
Vinte Sustainable Bond Framework, which states 
that the use of proceeds from these emissions is 
housing development that meets “green” criteria.

Our Green 
Commitment

25 COMMUNITIES IN
SIX STATES OF THE COUNTRY
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As of year-end 2019, the Company had a 
diversified range of housing products, with the goal 
of satisfying different needs of different economic 
segments of the population, providing innovative 
and sustainable facilities in all its developments 
which have the following differentiators:

1. The promotion of life in community.

2. The incorporation of technology for 
homes.

3. Buildings with urban and integral 
designs.

Quality Management

For homes to be delivered, they must be certified 
by an independent inspector under the NOM 442 
that describes the scope and obligations for quality 
management. 

Additionally, VINTE certifies a portion of its built 
houses under other guidelines, such as the EDGE 
Certification (3,916 units already obtained this 
certification), the ECO-CASA certification, and/or 
Infonavit and FOVISSTE certifications (when our 
clients use a mortgage from these institutions). 

VINTE is working on getting the ISO 9001 
certification, which leads to the ISO 45001 (Safety 
of Construction) and ISO 14001 (Environmental 
Impacts) certifications. On October 7th and 8th we 
took the first step towards achiving this with the 

Products and 
Services

interpretation course of the ISO 9001 applied to 
Vinte. 

We expect to get the certifications sometime in 
2020. 
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Affordable Entry Level 
(VIS)

Middle-Income
(VIM)

Middle Higher Income
(VIR)

Affordable Entry Level 
(VIS)

Middle-Income
(VIM)

Middle Higher Income
(VIR)

103-2, 103-3

To date, the projects in the titling stage are:

Throughout its history, Vinte has commercialized 
and incorporated several projects, which are 
detailed below:

In 2019 Vinte invested Ps. 3,265 millions in land 
acquisition, urbanization, infrastructure, and 
home building. The investment in infrastructure for 
recreational, educational,  and health purposes in 
our communities is a fundamental part of VINTE´s 

shared value design. This positively impacts the 
communities we develop, allowing our clients to 
enjoy a better quality of life. 
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Since it was founded, the Company has based its 
strategy on technological inclusion and sustainable 
development. This has been strengthened over 
time with the constant effort from Vintelligence, 
our research, development, and innovation team, 
which was established over 10 years ago (the only 
team with this goal in the housing industry).
 

Vintelligence’s objective is to develop projects, 
alliances, and technology development 
agreements which strengthen the Company’s 
competitive edge by offering a wide range of new 
products which lead to added-value creation. 
Thanks to Vintelligence, we have achieved, among 
other things:

Our own developments

LooK: telemetry equipment for real time 
measurement of residential utility services (water, 
electricity, gas) which incentivizes the awareness 
and modification of consumption patterns in favor 
of the environment and our customers’ economy. 
This device is discontinued, but between 2011 
and 2019 4,300 units were installed in our homes.

Vintelligence: 
Housing 
Innovation

We are composed by 2 functional teams 
which are involved from the beginning of a 
project until its full implementation:

Technological 
Innovation and 
Sustainability

Focused on finding, evaluating, and 
implementing new urban technologies for 
houses that improve the energy efficiency, 
alternative energy use, safety, and comfort. 
In terms of sustainability, we oversee 
our products evaluation, as well as the 
generation, administration, and management 
of sustainability linked information, as well as 
our participation in national and international 
work programs.
 

Research, Development 
and Continuous 
Improvement

Focused on the development and 
incorporation of materials and construction 
systems in the building process, seeking 
a reduction in both costs of converting 
materials and time spent in each process 
through efficiencies. Having a strong 
component based on technological 
surveillance of the automated processes 
sector and tools dedicated to processes 
simplification, in addition to the conversion 
and generation of urban communities into 
productive communities and a component of 
construction monitoring processes assisted 
with unmanned flight equipment.
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Compuesto MAC:  Vinte developed a 
replacement for traditional wood fibers using 
polymer resin combined at the nanostructure level 
with carbon and rice. This product absorbs 95% 
less water, making it very environmentally friendly.

103-2, 103-3, 303-1

Ecofix: non-toxic, environmentally friendly crack 
repair paste, which, thanks to its non-toxicity, 
ease of application, and effectiveness, represents 
savings of $3,500 m.m. per house for the company 
and a definitive solution for our clients. 3,400 kg 
of this product have been used in our homes. 
On average, 0.5 kg is required per repair, which 
represents a total of 6,800 repairs form 2013 to 
date.
 
Vinteja: an ecological product for replacing tiles 
made from cementitious materials. Its lightness 
makes it possible to replace steel- or wood-based 
roofing support systems with fiberglass-based 
systems to solve corrosion and humidity problems 
in coastal areas. 7,640 m2 of this product have 
been installed from 2015 to date.

Details of installations for Look, 
Ecofix y Vinteja:

We use this material on finishes and coatings 
because it is non-toxic, non-flammable, and 
termite-resistant (and, as said before, it helps with 
water saving).
 
Sustainable Housing Programs and 
Certifications

NZHE: in 2010, by invitation from CONAVI and 
with resources from the Canadian government, 
we participated in the creation of 4 zero-energy 
homes, a project that was presented at COP 16.
 
EDGE: in 2012 we participated in the pilot plan 
certifying 16 homes in Mexico and in 2019 we 
began a certification project of 3,900 homes which 
we planned to have 100% certified by May 2020. 
To date, in line with this plan, we have certified 
3,916 homes.

LOOK 
(units)

ECOFIX 
(kg)

VINTEJA 
(m2)

2011 44 - -

2012 16 - -

2013 905 52 -

2014 794 832 -

2015 1,193 893 835

2016 595 931 1,339

2017 350 330 2,122

2018 239 320 2,342

2019 164 42 1,003

Total 4,300 3,400 7,640



2019 Annual Sustainability Report 23

Hybrid Houses

Since 2017, the Company has been working on 
the development of a house that will completely 
eliminate the use of gas and introduce alternative 
energy technologies with the aim of reducing CO2 
emissions from combustion and offering a house 
with lower operating costs which is more friendly 
to the environment. In 2019, we built and sold 
the first 56 homes in this category, with energy 
consumption reductions near 42% and economic 
savings of up to $700 m.n. These homes obtained 
EDGE Advanced Certification which requires 
a reduction in energy use of at least 40%. We 
achieved a 57% reduction in energy use.

Impact on Affordable Entry Level 
segment families 

This affordable entry level segment mainly uses 
LP gas, which is the most polluting, harmful, 
and dangerous. In fact, over 70% of energy 
consumption in this segment is gas, not electricity. 
By creating hybrid homes, Vinte helps eliminate 
risk associated with LP gas consumption for 
families.

Summary of EDGE certification results:

103-2, 103-3, 303-1

Total water savings 
212,760 m3/year

Energy savings 
5,461 MWh/year

Materials efficiency 
817,085 GJ

Development: R. Granada R. Vizaya R. Castilla R. Segovia R. Navarra R. Madeira R. Amalfi R. Bilbao Catania R. Valencia R. Solare Total

Certified Units 658 225 531 396 311 159 328 414 203 172 519 3,916

Efficiency – Energy 35% 34% 25% 31% 36% 30% 39% 36% 34% 27% 26% 32%

Efficiency - Water 26% 41% 36% 42% 45% 42% 48% 48% 48% 34% 38% 41%

Eficiency – Materials 65% 72% 69% 67% 71% 74% 66% 65% 69% 70% 64% 68%

Annual CO2 Emissions

/unit (ton) 1.13 2.32 0.95 0.97 0.88 1.80 1.45 0.88 1.79 1.07 1.01 1.30

Annual CO2 Em 
Savings /unit (ton)
 0.78 1.67 0.48 0.61 0.64 1.09 1.20 0.69 1.23 0.28 0.46 0.83

Annual CO2 Em 
Savings (ton)
 417 337 142 189 174 143 265 284 246 46 164 2,408
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EMOBEL

Emobel focuses on meeting the needs of families 
seeking to boost the feeling of ownership in 
their homes, through professional solutions and 
equipment that improve people´s quality of life, all 
under the philosophy of “the best product at the 
best price”. Furthermore, by selling this together 
with the house, families manage to finance the 
purchase of their furniture within their mortgage.

Post-Sale Service

An essential service that the Company offers is an 
after-sale service, which focuses on the promotion 
of life in community, to guarantee the social 
conditions to offer a better quality of life in all its 
developments through services like connectivity, 
urbanization control, social integration and 
community development, which include:

Schools GardensParks and 
Ammenities

Crosswalks

Fitness
Centers

Retail
Space

Suveilance
Booths

Quarterly Sales
Volume (Units)

Quarterly Sales 
(MXN millions)

1Q2018 $27.5

2Q2018 $35.6

3Q2018 $38.0

4Q2018 $46.1

1Q2019 $37.9

2Q2019 $38.4

3Q2019 $51.4

4Q2019 $43.5
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Vinte’s Clients

102-6

Vinte’s clients are mostly individuals who generally 
require a mortgage to purchase their homes.
To define its clients’ profile, Vinte considers the 
range of monthly income, as well as the price 
range and the characteristics of the home they 
wish to acquire.

None of Vinte’s customers represent more 
than 10% of its consolidated sales.

 
Below we show how we segment our market:

Affordable Entry-Level Housing (VIS)

• Socioeconomic class: D/D+
• Price range: $400,000 to $550,000*
• Areas: kitchen, living-dining room, 2 

bedrooms, parking, all available services.
• Apartments starting at 49m²
• Houses starting at 54m²

Middle-income Housing (VIM)

• Socioeconomic class: C
• Price range: $550,000 to $1,100,000*
• Areas: kitchen, living-dining room, hall, 2 to 

3 bedrooms, 2 to 3 bathrooms, 1 to 2
• Parking spaces, service room, all available 

services.
• Apartments starting at 45m²
• Houses starting at 52m²

Middle Higher Income Housing (VIR)

• Socioeconomic class: C+
• Price range: 1,100,000-4,000,000*
• Areas: kitchen, living room, dining room, 

hall, 3 to 4 bedrooms, 2 to 3 bathrooms, 
2 to 3 parking spaces, service room, all 
available services.

• Houses starting at 79m²



2019 Annual Sustainability Report 26

VINTE’s Geographic Footprint

102-3, 102-4

Vinte is headquarted in Mexico City and operates in 
the State of Mexico, Queretaro, Hidalgo, Quintana 
Roo, Puebla and Nuevo Leon. The Company has 
decided to concentrate its operations in these 
entities as they jointly account for more than 
42.9% of the country´s Gross Domestic Product, 
33.6% of the population, and 38.3% of the 
national housing demand with mortgage access, 
according to the information provided by the 
National Population Council (Consejo Nacional 
de Población – CONAPO), National Institute of 
Statistics and Geography (Instituto Nacional de 
Estadistica y Geografia - INEGI) and National 
Housing Commission (Comision Nacional de 
Vivienda - CONAVI).

Vinte has over four years of land reserves in each 
location. This adds to approximately 620 hectares 
as of December 31st, 2019. We estimate this is 
enough for the development of approximately 
39,503 affordable entry-level, middle-income, 
and middle higher income homes. 

Income from home titling by location as of 
December 31st, 2019

During the year, approximately 
22% of our sales originated from 
digital media.

Central region (1), Nuevo León and 
Quintana Roo as a % of National 

Level

   GDP (2) 42.9%

   Population (3) 33.6%

   Housing Demand (4) 38.3%

   New home

   mortgages (4) 44.0%



Vinte’s 2019 Key Figures
102-7

Annual increase in

Net Income of 4.8% 

Annual increase in

Revenues of 10.1%

Annual increase in

EBITDA of 14.7%
Increase of 18.2%
vs 2018 in average prices

Decrease of 4.3%
in sold homes in the year

Utilidad neta por vivienda de 

Ps.123k (vs. Ps.112k en 2018)

Net Margin of 14.2%
(vs. 14.9% in 2018)

ROE of 16.5% 
(vs. 18.8% in 2018)

Debt 100% in pesos

Average debt 
maturity of 6.2 years

Investment of Ps. 
3,265 million in the year. 

0.1% of sales in the year 

were done with subsidies

CAGR (2009-2019) of 16.9% 
and 19.1% in EBITDA
and Net Income, respectively

More than 50% of 
sales were to clients 
who came from client 
recommendations or digital 
media

Average annual 
capital gain of 9.3%, 
the biggest in the industry

Net Debt/EBITDA of 
2.39x as of year-end
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Financial Information

102-7

Cash Flow Statement  (Ps.millions)

Growth and profitability (%)

Revenue by
Location (%)

Average Price
(thousand pesos)

Income Statement  (Ps. millions)

Balance Sheet (Ps. millions)

2016 2017 2018 2019

Revenue 2,752 3,123 3,402 3,745

Gross Profit (without capitalized 
interests) 951 1,069 1,172 1,244

Operating Income 548 630 665 745

Comprehensive Financing Result

(including capitalized interests) 109 136 128 116

EBITDA 627 717 762 874

Net Income 369 439 508 533

2016 2017 2018 2019

Cash and cash equivalents 218 284 330 252

Total assets 4,309 5,121 6,406 7,931

Total debt 895 1,253 2,017 2,345

Total liabilities 2,002 2,576 3,557 4,353

Total equity 2,307 2,545 2,849 3,577

2016 2017 2018 2019

Revenue growth 7% 13% 9% 10%

EBITDA growth 8% 14% 6% 15%

Gross margin 35% 34% 34% 33%

Operating margin 20% 20% 20% 20%

EBITDA margin 23% 23% 22% 23%

Net margin 13% 14% 15% 14%

2016 2017 2018 2019

EBIT 499 557 614 726

Cash Flow from operating activities -274 110 -103 -600

Cash Flow from investment activities -47 -43 -98 -119

Cash Flow from financing activities 326 -1 247 641

Cash at the beginning of the period 213 218 284 330

Change in cash 5 66 46 -77

Cash at the end of the period 218 284 330 252
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Gross Profit  (Ps.  millions)EBITDA (Ps. millions)

Net Income and Net MarginFinancial ratios (times)

Housing sales revenues 2019Housing sales revenues 2018

2016 2017 2018 2019

Current assets / Current liabilities 3.7 3.8 3.4 3.7

Current assets / Total Debt 1.4 1.2 0.9 1.1

Total Liabilities / Equity 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.2

Gross Debt / LTM EBITDA 1.4 1.7 2.6 3.0

Net Debt / LTM EBITDA 1.1 1.4 2.2 2.6

Net Debt / Equity 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.6

Interest coverage 5.7 5.3 6.0 6.2

ROE (%) 19.4% 18.1% 18.8% 16.2%

ROIC (%) 24.3% 22.1% 18.9% 15.6%
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102-15, 102-21, 102-29, 102-33, 102-34, 102-44, 102-47, 
103-1

In 2020 we carried out our first materiality 
assessment to better align our sustainability 
strategy and have the greatest possible positive 
impact on our different stakeholders. Our goal 
was to understand which are the material topics 
we should focus on, to be able to optimize our 
resources as well as recognize potential risks in 
the way we have managed our strategy to date. 

Furthermore, the materiality assessment allows 
us to identify the most relevant key performance 
indicators which we should be reporting in our 
Annual Sustainability Reports going forward so 
we can comply with the principles of Materiality 
and Completeness under the GRI’s Methodology.

As a result, from this analysis we identified 10 
material topics which we present in our materiality 
matrix below.

Materiality 
Analysis

   Material topics

1 House design

4 Business ethics

5 Corporate governance

6 Impact on location’s ecology

7 Regulatory issues management

8 Human rights management

12 Water management

14 Employee relations practices

17 Resilient model to the economic cycle

20 Housing quality

   Urgent topics

0 None

   Emerging topics

2 Diversity and inclusion in labor force

11 Supply chain management

16 Community relations

   General topics

3 Greenhouse emissions

9 Waste disposal management

10 Critical incidents management

13 Sales (marketing) practices

15 Client privacy and safe data management

16 Community relations

18 Employees health and safety

19 Community safety
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Methodology

102-21, 102-29, 102-33, 102-34, 102-44, 102-47, 103-1

To carry out our materiality analysis, together with 
Miranda ESG (our consultants), we first defined a 
list of the 20 most relevant topics that we believe 
we can phase as a company and where we can 
have a bigger impact for our stakeholders in 
environmental, social, and corporate governance 
issues. To define this list, guided by GRI’s 
Sustainability Context principle, we revised 
different sustainability standards that are relevant 
for our industry, as well as reports from peers and 
our past sustainability reports. 

As a second step, we defined the best way to 
contact our different stakeholders (both internal 
and external). Within our target stakeholders we 
considered analysts, Banks, employees, members 
of the board, our management team, investors, 
and suppliers. We designed adequate surveys for 
each stakeholder and used our communication 
channels with them to follow up and increase 
the response rate. In total we received 1,033 
responses to our surveys which we considered in 
our interpretation and analysis process. 

In the third step we interpreted all the data we got 
from the surveys to define which are our material 
topics to focus on (we defined 10 material topics). 
We also found 3 emerging topics and 7 general 
topics. Then, we compared the interests shown 
by internal stakeholders vs external stakeholders 
to test for alignment. 

In our last step, we discussed the results of 
this exercise in our Sustainability Committee. 
We analyzed our existing key performance 
indicators for the different material topics and 
discussed which indicators we are missing and 
should develop going forward considering the 
Completeness principle.

Number % of total

   External 653 63.2%

   Internal 380 36.8%

   Total 1,033

Number % of total

   Analysts 3 0.3%

   Banks 9 0.9%

   Clients 626 60.6%

   Employees 360 34.8%

   Board 3 0.3%

   Management 17 1.6%

   Investors 6 0.6%

   Suppliers 9 0.9%

   Total 1,033



2019 Annual Sustainability Report 34

Material topics priorities per 
stakeholder group 

102-21, 102-29, 102-33, 102-34, 102-44, 102-47, 103-1

In the process of gathering responses for our 
materiality assessment, we received several 
comments of people that felt all the factors we 
were testing were important for Vinte, and that 
ranking them in any way wasn’t easy. It is therefore 
unsurprising to see that the average ratings are all 
relatively high in our rating scale.  Undoubtedly the 
most material topic for most of our stakeholders 
was business ethics.

Average rating by material topic 
per stakeholder group (5 is highest 
rating, 1 is lowest)

Highest rated material topic per 
stakeholder group

   Analysts    Impact on the location ecology

   Banks    Corporate governance, regulatory issues management

   Clients    House quality

   Employees    Business ethics

   Board    Business ethics

   Management    Business ethics

   Investors    Business ethics

   Suppliers    Business ethics

Analysts Banks Clients Employees Board Management Investors Suppliers

House design 4.00 4.44 4.62 4.42 4.33 4.71 4.83 4.67
Business ethics 3.33 4.78 4.60 4.59 5.00 4.82 5.00 4.89

Corporate governance 3.67 5.00 4.32 4.15 4.67 4.24 4.83 4.33

Impact on the location ecology 5.00 4.11 4.67 4.44 4.67 4.29 4.50 4.33

Regulatory issues management 3.33 5.00 4.58 4.21 3.33 4.53 4.83 4.56

Human rights management 3.67 4.33 4.38 4.31 4.33 4.18 4.50 4.78

Water management 4.00 4.22 4.69 4.37 4.67 4.06 4.50 4.11

Employee relations practices 4.33 4.33 4.29 4.40 3.67 4.41 4.17 4.67

Resilient model to the economic cycle 3.67 4.89 4.31 4.41 4.00 4.65 4.83 4.11

House quality 3.67 4.78 4.89 4.58 4.33 4.41 4.83 4.56
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102-31, 103-2, 103-3 

Sustainability Axis

Vinte seeks to improve people’s quality of life 
by providing real estate developments with 
integral sustainable designs, better equipment 
and ammenities compared to peers, and the 
community development. To achieve this, the 
Company monitors, among other things, the 
following elements within its communities:

• Closeness to support institutions that can 
provide support in emergencies.

• Adequate streets for traffic flow.
• Functional and well distributed luminaires 

system in surrounding areas. 
• Surrounding surveillance apartments.

• High quality homes and amenities in the 
developments. 

• Locations with good connectivity. 
• Access to relevant services: paved roads, 

internet, amenities which incentivize 
community integration, among others. 

• Future develoment opportunities: shopping 
centers, schools, etc.

Sustainability 
Model

• Strategic location near hospital centers.
• Adequate pluvial sewer system. 
• Participation in state or municipal health 

brigades.
• Accessibility to public and private medicine 

distributors. 

• School facilities near the developments. 
• Presence of cultural public organizations.
• Recreational arts specialized centers. 
• Access to cultural activities.  

HEALTH

EDUCATION

SECURITY

CAPITAL GAINS

ADEQUATE
POLICIES

ADEQUATE 
TECHNOLOGY

INSTITUTIONALITY AND CULTURE

Environ-
mental

Social

Economic

Equitable

Viable

Bearable

Sustainable
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Sustainability Committee

102-19, 102-20, 102-31

    
Ec

onomic            
                    Environm

ental                  

M
anagement                                    

      S
ocia

l

Gonzalo Pizzuto
Finance
     
Melito Hernández
ADC 

Rene Jaime Mungarro                  
CEO

Carlos Cadena
Institutional Relations
Director

Domingo Valdés
CFO

Carlos Lopez
A.C.H

Myriam Rodriguez
Human Capital

Marlén Vázquez
Post-sale

Guillermo Rosete            
SySO

Eleazar Acuña
 Design

Tobias  Contreras
Vintelligence

Maclovio Hernández
Prooduction

Carlos Santurtún       
  IPO

Fernando Magaña                    
G.R.T.

Orlando Ramírez
COCOVI

Management

Urban

Construction

Edification

Environmental and social management system

International certifications

Operation

Product

The Sustainability Committee has at least 2 
meetings per year to go over all sustainability 
topics as well as the company’s sustainability 
strategy.

          Top
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Sustainability

103-2, 103-3 

With the goal of optimizing the social and 
environmental impacts in our developments, Vinte 
has a Social and Environmental Management 
System based on:

This system includes the protocols for fortituous 
findings, which encourage the respect, care, 
and protection of Mexico’s cultural heritage, 
abiding by all rules and regulations, as well as the 
procedures required by the pertinente authorities 

and the Instituto Nacional de Antropología e 
Historia (INAH).

As a result of the above, as well as Vinte’s 
commitment to maintain a healthy workplace as 
well as abide by the best practices for ESG, we 
again went through the ESG rating process from:

Overall Performance

Overall ESG Risk Rating
Low Risk

Momentum Score
Improved

Percentile
Real Estate Development

Percentile
Global Universe

19.7

-3.4

19th

5th

• Constitución Política de los
Estados Unidos Mexicanos
(Mexican Constitution)

• Ley General de Bienes
Nacionales
(National Assets Law)

• Ley Federal sobre
Monumentos y Zonas
Arqueológicos, Artísticos e
Históricos
(Historic Sites Law)

• Reglamento de la Ley
Federal sobre Monumentos
y Zonas Arqueológicos,
Artísticos e Históricos
(Historic Sites Regulation)

• Ley Orgánica del Instituto
Nacional de Antropología e
Historia (INAH)
(Anthropology and History 
National Institute law)

• Ley General del Equilibrio
Ecológico y la Protección al
Ambiente LGEEPA SEMARNAT
(Environmental Protection Law)

Top Material Issues Score SevereHighMedLowNegl
0-2 2-4 4-6 6-8 8+

1. Corporate Governance

2. Product Governance

3. Human Capital

4. Emissions, Effluents and Waste

5. Bribery and Corruption

6. ESG Integration - Financials

5.2

3.5

2.5

2.4

2.2

2.2
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Out of the key ESG factors, Vinte got the best 
possible rating for 6 of them (environmental impact, 
social impact, marketing practices, quality and 
safety, employee turnover, and labour relations). 
In 6 others Vinte got an average rating (life cycle 
assesment, green building investments, share of 
green buildings, freedom of association policy, 
discrimination policy, and diversity programs). 
Only 2 ESG factors were rated as low (green 
building memberships, occupier satisfaction 
surveys – which we don’t have as we are a for 
sale developer and not a for lease developer). 

In 2019 we continued working in our sustainability 
initiatives to become leaders in our segment.

Overall, we were rated as an average performer 
in our segment. To arrive to this conclusion, 
Sustainalytics analyzed what they consider the 
most representative ESG factors in real estate. Fo 
our particular industry, the 14 key ESG factors are 
defined as:

ESG Integration

1. Real estate LCA
2. Green buildings investments
3. Share of green buildings
4. Green building memberships
5. Environmental impact of products events
6. Social impacts of products events

Product Governance

7. Occupier satisfaction surveys
8. Marketing practices events
9. Quality and safety events

Human Capital

10. Freedom of association policy
11. Discrimination policy
12. Diversity programs
13. Employee turnover rate
14. Labor relations events

102-40, 102-42, 102-43

Our main stakeholders, as well as the ways we 
interact with them, the most relevant topics of 
interest, and the business divisions in charge of 
providing service and attention regarding those 
stakeholders’ interest topics are explained below:

Stakeholders
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102-12, 103-2, 103-3, 303-1, 303-2

Vinte contributes to the achievement of 14 of the 
17 UN Sustainable Development Goals.

• Vinte drives economic growth in the áreas 
it develops promoting an organized urban 
spread, new jobs generation, and new retail 
development to service its communities.

• 43% of our employees are women.
• 245 are in management and leadership 

positions.
• More than 40% of Vinte homes deeded in 2019 

were acquired by women.

• 9 water treatment plants and 323 
pluvial collection systems supporting 
natural aquifers.

• All our communities are connected to modern 
energy public networks.

• Vivienda Híbrida / Cero Gas.
• Over 3,900 houses with EDGE certification.

• Most profitable housing developer listed in the 
Mexican equity market.

• Strategic partners: BID, PROPARCO, IFC, and 
DEG.

• Capital gains in the houses develped in 
different states in Mexico.

• We use technology and innovation to effectively 
industrialize our productive processes.

• Built and donated more than 92kms of roads.

• Vinte has sold over 43 thousand homes in 
mixed communities (affordable entry level and 
middle income). The affordable entry level 
homes have seen the biggest capital gains over 
time.

• Through its communities, Vinte encourages 
better urban planning and management so that 
urban spaces are more inclusive, safe, and 
sustainable, promoting integration and integral 
social mobility.

• 7 medical clinics built and donated by Vinte. 
• Enough sports and recreational equipment.
• Public parks with high quality equipments, 

bikeways, dog parks, or gyms, among other 
things.

• High quality public schools built according to 
the demand coming from our communities. 

• Kids attending schools donated by Vinte have 
shown better average scores in standardized 
tests vs. other schools in the same 
municipalities.

UN’s SDGs

• Vinte’s housing units are built using sustainable 
materials, just like the 3,900 EDGE certified 
homes which enjoy a 67% efficiency gain by 
the use ecofriendly materials. 

• At Vinte we help slow down climate change 
starting with our design processes both at a 
community level and in each unit. 

• All the homes in our communities use 
sustainable ecotechnologies. 

• Vinte makes sure to comply and respect all 
human rights, egalitarian social integration, 
individual and collective human development, 
social mobility, people’s safety and integrity, 
tolerance and non-discrimination.

• Vinte continously generates alliances and 
partnerships with both local and global 
institutions to achieve the UN’s SDGs through 
its communities. 
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As part of our commitment with the UN’s 
sustainable development goals, our social 
responsibility rests on two main axis: 

Social Integration 

• Functions as a neighborhood organization 
trhough a civil association (A.C.). 

• Makes improvements and community 
maintenance through the Promotor Vecinal 
figure.

• Manages civil campaigns with both private 
and public institutions.

Fundación Vinte

Goals:

• Promote the collaborative participation of 
neighbors.

• Rehabilitate public spaces. 
• Improve the environment.
• Increase the perception of safety within the 

community.

• 43,000 homes titled in affordable entry level, 
middle income, and middle higher income 
semgments in  our mixed communities.

• Vinte’s community model includes highly 
equipped public parks, bikeways, dog parks, 
gyms, among other amenities. 

• Capital gains  near 9.3% per year, the 
highest in the industry.

• 92 kms of roads and 7 medical clinics  
built and donated by Vinte.

• 754 classrooms  fot 28 donated schools, 
rated within the best performing schools  
by academic performance in their region, 
as verified by PwC.

• 9 water treatment plants  and 323 pluvial 
collection systems supporting natural 
aquifers.

• First housing developer to develop EDGE 
(IFC) certified houses in Mexico, we certified 
3,916 EDGE houses between 2019 and 2020 
in 11 different developments, and from the 
total 147 were EDGE Advanced houses.

2019/2020 Proyecto de Certificación EDGE

Certified units 3,916

Energy efficiencies 32%

Water efficiencies 41%

Materials efficiencies 68%

GHG emmisions (tons of CO2 / year /unit (ton) 0.61
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103-2, 103-3

Vinte has an environmental protection approach, 
that fosters the efficient use of natural resources 
through its comprehensive environmental 
management program; including facilities that 
boost people’s skills, providing safety, energy 
consumption savings, communication avenues, 
as well as natural heritage preservation.

All homes in Vinte’s communities are equipped 
with ecotechnologies which allow us to offer 
sustainable amenities to its inhabitants, as well 
as lead to material monthly savings in utility bills 
(electricity, water, and gas) thanks to the use of 
energy saving lamps, ecological WCs, tankless 
water heaters, among other things.

Vinte continues with its innovation towards 
more efficient homes which improve the 
quality of life for its clients. To date, it has 
certified 3,916 homes as EDGE (between 
2019 and 2020). 

Each one of these units has savings in CO2 
emissions of approximately 0.61 tons per year. 
This translates into total savings of 2,408 CO2 
tons for the 3,916 homes.

During 2019, Vinte titled 1,960 homes under the 
green mortgage regime from the INFONAVIT.

Environmental

Most relevant home improvement
projects from the past years:

System with average annual generation of 40 MW, 
allowing a reduction of 20 tons of GHG emissions 
and annual economic savings of Ps.70,000

Solar energy generation 
for common areas2010

With the support of Canada’s Government and the 
CONAVI, we achieved efficiencies from thermal 
isolation in walls and slabs and solar protection on 
windows, resulting in 77% electric energy savings.

Zero energy homes2010

This Project grants credits for the construction of 
energy efficient houses, reducing at the very least 
20% of GHG emissions. Vinte participated in this 
project in its development in Pachuca, Hidalgo.

ECOCASA Project
(Nama Vivienda)2013

The first EDGE program in Mexico was done in our 
development  in Cadiar de Real Granada, Tecámac, 
Estado de México.

EDGE
Granada-Cadiar2015

Homes built-to-suit for clients with special needs or 
disabilities. Thes homes have special adaptations 
made like ramps, special sensors, and others.

Housing for people with 
disabilities2017

Houses in this program substitute the use of gas 
for alternative energy sources which are more eco-
friendly, reducing by 57% the energetic consumption 
by 37% the water use, an by up to 63% the use of 
building materials.

Casa Híbrida, Cero Gas2018

We titled the first home in our Montalto development 
in Nuevo León, where all homes will have a solar 
panel.

Houses with solar 
panels2019
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Seeking to offer a higher quality of life the people 
living in our communities, since 2008 Vinte 
has offered several sustainable technological 
innovations:

*Approximate calculation considering saving light bulbs and 
using INFONAVIT’s simulator. Ecotechnologies are only used for 
INFONAVIT and FOVISSSTE mortgage schemes. 

Solutions

103-2, 103-3, 303-1, 303-2

All units in Montalto 
in Monterrey have 

solar panels.

Our communities 
have  closed gates, 
sustainable urban 

design, parks,sports 
áreas, bikeways, 

rainwater collection 
and treatment, and 
after sale services.

Vinte has built 323 
pluvial collection 

systems in its 
communities, as 
well as 9 water 

treatment plants. 

First Mexican 
homebuilder to certify 

homes under the 
EDGE program. To 

date, we have certified 
3,916 units in this 

program.

Efficient water 
mixing valves 

in kitchens and 
bathrooms

Dual flushing 
system WCs

Efficient
showers

Rainwater 
collection 
systems

Average electricity Bill for a 
4 members household* 
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102-9, 103-2, 103-3

In 2018 Vinte launched its Casa Híbrida – 
Cero Gas (Hybrid zero emission house) 
model, doing trial tests in the State of 
Mexico, Queretaro, and Quintana Roo.

In 2019 we built and sold the first 56 units 
in this program where we registered energy 
savings of 42%. 

The program’s goal, as per its name, is to substitute 
gas with environmentally friendly alternative 
energy sources at a lower cost. Traditional gas 
stoves are replaced with magnetic induction grills 
and the gas-fueled water heater is replaced with 
electric and solar powered options. To mitigate 
the increase in electricity consumption, solar 
panels are installed.

As a result from these tests, we registered the 
following benefits:

In total this translates into  anual savings of 
73  CO2 tons in the 56 units that are part of the 
program.

Supply chain management

Vinte’s supply chain includes suppliers of 
construction materials as well as services 
related to the construction process of all our 
developments. 

VINTE does not certify its suppliers or sub-
suppliers plants. For important raw materials, 

102-9, 102-41

Vinte was one of the pioneers in digital 
mortgages, establishing partnerships with Intel 
and Microsoft to provide internet and computers 
in its communities for the use of its inhabitants, 
reducing the technological gap through housing 
financing for low- income families. 

Additionally, throughout its history, Vinte has 
increased the benefits that its homes provide its 
clients, with the main goal of increasing the quality 
of life, by providing among other things:

Social Impact

Amenities that promote family life.

A suitable environment to better live 
within a community.

Housing for all by including units that have 
been modified for people with disabilities.

Access to internet an computers for low 
income families by providing the necessary 
equipments within the house financing, 
helping reduce the access to technology 
inequalities in Mexico. 

1

3

2

4

Energy efficiencies 57%

Water efficiencies 37%

Construction materials efficiencies 63%

CO2 annual emissions /unit (ton) 0.63

Savings in CO2 annual emmisions /unit (ton) 1.31

such as concrete, Vinte requires lab tests on 
demand to certify the product’s quality.
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Philanthropic Efforts

In addition, Vinte collaborates in an important 
way with Fundación VINTE, a non-profit Civil 
Association that seeks to support the improvement 
of communities and public areas through high 
impact altruistic actions. Some institutions our 
foundation has collaborated with are:

In March 2020, our foundation received SAT 
approval to be considered as an Authorized 
Grantee. There is an estimated budget of Ps.1 
million a year that Vinte will allocate to the 
foundation. This budget is estimated to increase 
to Ps.3 million in 3 years. Prior to the VINTE 
Foundation, Vinte made several philanthropic 
efforts, such as:

i. In response to the earthquake, VINTE donated 
materials and tools to the Vamos México 
Foundation.

ii. We built a house in the State of Mexico for a 
girl with leukemia.

iii. In collaboration with another foundation, 
scholarships were awarded to students.

iv. Two classrooms were built to educate 
construction workers, one in Tecamac and the 
other in Playa del Carmen, which were later 
donated to a foundation called Construyendo 
y Creciendo, that is in charge of outfitting 
them, and with the support of INEA, bringing 
teachers and giving official certificates.

• With the purpose of helping architecture students 
in university and postgraduate enrich their 
knowledge, we have participated in various forums 
to publicize Vinte’s business model, contributions, 
and innovations.

• In the classroom we have shared our experiences 
from best practices, to starting a business, to 
sustainability issues.

• Committed to the youth of Mexico, we grant 
scholarships to low-income students to complete 
their studies and specialize abroad.

• Vinte Supports students at CETYS University, 
Campus Mexicali, so that talented young people 
can continue on the path towards their dreams.

• Committed with the future of our country, we 
donated to the Engineering Faculty highly 
specialized technological equipment to support 
research, technological development, as well as 
the development of highly qualified personnel in 
the áreas of Nanotechnology, Biomedicine, and 
Physics. 
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Education

A study by PwC Strategy& found that schools located within or near Vinte’s developments perform well 
above the municipal average.
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Security

103-2, 416-1

A study by PwC Strategy& found that schools 
located in or near the Vinte developments perform 
well above the municipality average.

As part of Vinte’s commitment to the development, 
maintenance, and protection of their communities, 
safety and health regulations are implemented to 
maintain order and ensure the well-being of the 
inhabitants.

They are generally governed by the Specific Civil 
Protection Program, as is the case with the Real 
Granada project that implements the following 
regulations:

Safety Regulations

Organizational Regulations

Specific Regulations

Health Regulations

100% of homes are in 
gated communities,  

while more than
95% are in private 

communities. 

Number Regulation Name

   NOM-001-STPS-2008 Local buildings and facilities

   NOM-002-STPS-2010 Fire prevention and protection

   NOM-004-STPS-1999 Machinery, safety systems, and devices

   NOM-005-STPS-1998 Handling, transport, and storage of 
dangerous substances

   NOM-006-STPS-2014 Handling and Storage of Materials

Number Regulation Name

   NOM-010-STPS-1999 Contaminants from chemical substances

   NOM-011-STPS-2001 Noise

   NOM-024-STPS-2001 Vibrations

Number Regulation Name

   NOM-017-STPS-2008 Personal protective equipment

   NOM-018-STPS-2000 Identification of dangers and risks from 
chemical substances

   NOM-019-STPS-2011 Safety and hygiene commissions

   NOM-026-STPS-2008 Colors and safety signs

   NOM-028-STPS-2012 Safety for processes and equipment using 
chemical substances

   NOM-030-STPS-2009 Preventive health and safety services

Number Regulation Name

   NOM-007-STPS-2000 Machinery, equipment, and agricultural tools

   NOM-031-STPS-2011 Construction 
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102-7, 102-8, 102-41, 403-9, 403-10, 103-2, 103-3 

Due to the nature of the business, the number of 
Vinte workers varies according to the volume of 
work required for each position that it operates in. 
As of December 31, 2019, Vinte had approximately 
2,447 staff members, of whom 698 (28.5%) were 
women. Of the 2,447 staff, 945 are administrative 
and 1,502 are on site.

The company also has subcontract workers for 
special construction projects, there were 1,502 of 
these workers at the end of 2019.

Every year the economic terms of Vinte’s collective 
contracts are negotiated, while other terms and 
conditions from the contracts are negotiated 
throughout the year. As of December 31, 2019, 
1,502 Vinte construction workers were affiliated 
with various unions in Mexico. Relations between 
the company and these unions have been cordial 
and, as of the date of this report, the company has 
never experienced a labor strike, nor any relevant 
conflict of that nature to settle, nor and significant 
delay related to a labor matter.

Workforce

35 THOUSAND JOBS
DIRECTLY AND INDIRECTLY GENERATED
THROUGHOUT OUR VALUE CHAIN

Vinte workers as of
December 31st, 2019

Administrative Employees
as of December 31st, 2019

Minor Accidents
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103-2, 103-3, 401-1, 401-3, 403-9
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103-2, 103-3, 403-1, 403-2, 403-3, 403-6, 403-7, 403-8, 403-9

Through COCOVI (VINTE Construction 
Committee) and the Internal Control Department, 
Vinte governs occupational health and safety 
policies. The Occupational Health and Safety 
Department is the area in charge of following up on 
the occupational health policies and procedures 
defined by this committee and the Department 
of Internal Control. The occupational safety and 
health policies have been improved and updated 
based on the requirements of Vinte Partners such 
as IFC and Proparco.

Currently, the standards and compliance with NOM 
035 of the STPS, and the ISO 9001 certifications 
are being prepared, which includes the ISO 45001 
certification focused on safety at work.

Our accident objective is to have ZERO 
serious accidents (disability or fatality), and 
have less than 10% of a project’s workforce 
experience a minor incident.

This objective is aligned with the standards 
from VINTE’s occupational health and safety 
policies.

Occupational 
Safety and 
Workforce Health 

It is also worth mentioning that during 2019, in 
follow-up to NOM-035 that governs psychosocial 
risk factors at work, we carried out an analysis to 
establish ways to identify, analyze, and prevent 
psychosocial risk factors, as well as to promote 
a favorable organizational environment in the 
workplace.

EMPLOYER OBLIGATIONS - NOM-035-STPS-2018

# of workers

Description of the Employer's Obligation Reference 
number 1-15 16-50 50 Date 

Effective
Psychosocial Risk Factors Prevention Policy 5.1 & Guide IV ✓ ✓ ✓ 2019

Analysis of Psychosocial Risk Factors 5.2, 7.1, 7.2 & Guide II ✓ ✓ 2020

Organizational Environment Assessment 5.3, 7.1, 7.2, 7.3 & Guide III ✓ 2020

Establish Psychosocial Risk Prevention Measures 5.4, 8.1 & 8.2 ✓ ✓ ✓ 2019

Establish Psychosocial Risk Control Measures 5.4. 8.3, 8.4 & 8.5 ✓ ✓ ✓ 2020

Identification of Severe Traumatic Events 5.5 & Guide I ✓ ✓ ✓ 2019

Medical Exams and Psychological Evaluations 5.6 ✓ ✓ ✓ 2020

Dissemination of Information to Workers 5.7 ✓ ✓ ✓ 2019

Document Registry and Evidence Management 5.8 & Guide V ✓ ✓ 2020
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103-2, 103-3, 401-2, 401-3 

Vinte’s collaborators are granted permissions, 
leave, and benefits that seek to satisfactorily 
accommodate their professional, social, and 
personal needs.

Vinte has established to notify its collaborators, 
in the event of significant changes in operations, 
changes and/or actions, with sufficient time in 
advance to be able to make improvements in the 
interests of its workers.

Vinte does not employ people under the age of 
18 for any type of work, in accordance with the 
policies established by the company, seeking not 
to interfere with the education of this segment of 
the  population and not to generate a negative 
social impact.

Legally Required Benefits

1. 45 hour work week.
2. Social security and INFONAVIT.
3. No less than 6 vacation days upon 

completing one work year.
4. 25% vacation bonus, on the days of 

the vacation period.
5. Official legal non-work holidays. 
6. End of year bonus equal to 15 days of 

salary.
7. Payment for PTU.

Benefits for all administrative staff

1. Loyalty bonus, payable at the same time as 
the vacation bonus.

2. Annual bonus equivalent to 15 days of salary, 
payable at the same time as the Christmas 
bonus.

3. Pantry vouchers equal to 11.11% of the 
employee’s salary.

4. In December, a turkey or an equivalent 
amount of money is awarded to each 
collaborator.

5. 5% salary contribution to a savings fund.
6. Annual performance bonuses.
7. Schedule leniency for studies, in special 

cases.
8. Leave due to accident, serious illness, or 

death of a direct blood or by marriage relative 
(parents, siblings, children, or spouse). 
Maximum 5 days.

9. Permission for special cases to care for and 
attend to minor children. Maximum 3 days.

10. Additional non-working days: Holy Thursday, 
Good Friday, May 10th, December 24th and 
31st.

11. Life insurance and GMM insurance for 
managers and executives (including 
children).

12. Automobile for Managers and Directors.
13. Credits and financing for the purchase of 

orthopedic devices.
14. Discount of 1% of the home value of a 

“Track” a home with the subsidiaries of 
Inmobiliaria Vinte.

15. Credit for the acquisition of durable goods or 
payment of FONACOT services.

16. Discounted loans via payroll for the 
acquisition of eMobel equipment.

17. Advance payment of up to one month for 
health issues. 

Parental Leave

1. Maternity leave, 45 days before and 45 
days after.

2. 5 days leave for adoption.
3. 2 extra breaks per day, of half an hour, 

for up to 6 months for breastfeeding.
4. 5-day parental leave for birth or 

adoption.
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Training Programs
and Campaigns

103-2, 103-3, 403-4, 403-5, 403-6, 404-2, 412-2, 416-1 

Vinte has strict staff development and training 
policies. Within these policies, there are 4 main 
areas of human capital development, which are:

• Company Induction Process.
• Safety Induction Courses.
• Training Schedule.
• Talent Development Program.

All Vinte employees must complete and carry 
out the activities described in the Training 
Schedule and the Talent Development Program. 
Within the Induction Course, VINTE emphasizes 
safety procedures in training its work teams and 
construction personnel.

In 2019, 36 training courses and workshops 
were held for Vinte staff and collaborators, with 
a total of 2,368 participants. Also, 65 health 
and safety education campaigns were 
carried out during the year, with a total of 3,257 
participants.

Vinte has the following labor policy and 
process certifications and recognitions:

• NOM 035 Certification: Psychosocial Risk 
Factors at Work.

• ISO 45001 Certification: Workplace Safety 
and Health.

• ISO 9001 Certification: Quality Management 
Systems.

• Recognition as a Neighborhood Promoter 
Certified by the Council for Standardization 
and Certification of Labor Competence.

• Socially Responsible Company Badge.
• Recognition as a Top Company in the list of 

Super Companies by Expansión magazine.
Among the courses with the largest 
number of attendees this year were:

• Time Management
• Analytical Thinking
• Effective Communication

The campaigns with the most 
attendance were:

•	 Vaccinations
•	 Early Disease Detection
•	 Vinte Wellness

Administrative Personnel

Women 434

Men 511

   Total 945

Construction Worker Staff

Women 264

Men 1,238

   Total 1,502

Grand Total 2,447
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With a focus on profitability, Vinte pursues 
diversification in its product mix by offering up to 
seven different housing types and models. The 
offerings are aimed at three different economic 
segments (Low-Income, Middle-Income and 
Middle Higher Income), this allows for operational 
flexibility from  access to a wide variety of 
mortgage sources and the ability to adapt to 
market demand.

Since 2007, Vinte has sold more than 40,000 
homes. 45% of them were priced at less than 
500,000 pesos, which places them, in what 
would be considered today, our “low-income” 
segment. This segment corresponds to a D - 
D+ socioeconomic level. 48% were sold priced 
between Ps.500,000 and Ps.1,000,000. This 
places them in the segment that today we 
consider “Middle Income” and that corresponds 
to a C socioeconomic level. Only 7% of our homes 
have been sold in the segment that we consider 
“Middle Higher Income”, which corresponds to a 
C+ socioeconomic class.

Note: Nominal Prices

Economic
Impact

Affordable Income
Ps.400 thousand – Ps.550 thousand

Middle Income
Ps.550 thousand – Ps.1.1 million 

Middle Higher Income
Ps.1.1 million – over Ps.4.0 million

   Up to $350 mil 3,077

   $350 to $500 mil 15,063

   $500 to $700 mil 12,123

   $700 to $1,000 mil 6,889

   $1,000 to $1,500 mil 1,630

   $1,500 to $2,000 mil 290

   Above $2,000 mil 933

   Total 40,005
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For additional information on our board members, 
please see our annual report.

Corporate 
Governance

Sergio
Leal

Aguirre

Manuel
Oropeza
Fuentes

René
Jaime

Mungarro

Héctor
Treviño

Gutiérrez

Carlos
Cadena

Ortiz de M.

Ramiro
Villareal
Morales

Antonio
Zúñiga

Hernández

Manuel
Oropeza
Fuentes

José
Soto

Montoya

Héctor
Treviño

Gutiérrez

Domingo
Valdés
Díaz

Ramiro
Villareal
Morales

Management
Team is

Experienced
and Highly

Complementary

Héctor
Treviño

Gutiérrez

Ramiro
Villareal
Morales

Manuel
Oropeza
Fuentes

Board of Directors

Non-Independent Members

Audit Committee Corporate Practices Committee Management Team

Secretary of the Board: Luis Octavio Núñez Orellana
Associate Deputy Partner with Kuri Breña, Sánchez Ugarte y Aznar S.C.

Independent Members

President of 
the Board 

(and Executive 
President)

President

Executive
Director

(and CEO)

Independent 
Director

Executive 
Director

(and Institutional 
Relations Director)

Independent 
Director

Executive 
Director

(and Production 
Manager)

President

Executive 
Director

(and Director 
of Design and 

Innovation)

Independent 
Director

Executive 
Director

(and CFO)

Independent 
Director

Independent 
Director

(former CFO of 
Coca-Cola Femsa)

Independent 
Director

(former Legal 
Executive VP of 

CEMEX)

Independent 
Director

(Founding Partner 
of GoldCo.)

Diversity on
the Board of
Directors

Company 
Members

Independent 
Members

67% 
33% 

Institutional 
Relations

Design /
Innovation

Medium and 
Long Term 

Strategy

CFO

Production 
Director

General
Management

Board of Directors

Vinte’s highest governance body is the Board of 
Directors, which is in charge of designing and 
approving the policies that govern the company, 
as well as value generation strategies; it has legal 
representation and can carry out all operations 
related to the company’s corporate purpose.

The Annual General Meeting is in charge of 
appointing and ratifying both the number of 
independent directors and the members that 
make up the Board of Directors.

Carlos
Cadena

Sergio
Leal

Antonio
Zúñiga

José
Soto

Domingo
Valdés

René
Jaime

https://www.vinte.com/en/reportes-anuales/
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Corporate Practices Committee

102-18, 102-27, 102-28, 102-32, 102-33, 102-35, 102-36,
103-2, 103-3

The main functions of the Corporate Practices 
Committee, established in the company’s 
bylaws derived from the LMV, are to call general 
shareholders meetings, request the opinion of 
independent experts,  when deemed appropriate, 
express opinions regarding exemptions so that 
third parties, officers, or related parties can 
take advantage of business opportunities that 
correspond to the company, help the Board 
of Directors to prepare the annual report, as 
well as review and approve the emoluments or 
comprehensive remuneration packages for the 
top executives.

Audit Committee

Its main functions include issuing its opinion to the 
Board of Directors on relevant matters pursuant 
to the LMV and the company’s bylaws, evaluating 
performance, and analyzing the documents 
issued by the external auditor, supporting the 
Board of Directors in preparing the annual report, 
and calling general shareholders meetings.

Sustainability Committee

In 2019, the creation of a Sustainability Committee 
was formalized, their main objectives are to 
complement and continuously improve Vinte’s 
sustainability culture, environmentally, socially, 
and economically. The Sustainability Committee 
will carry out its functions establishing plans, 
actions, and evaluation of results, in the short, 
medium, and long term, as well as implementing 
an Environmental and Social Management System 
and a Product Evaluation System. The Board of 
Directors, as well as its Chairman, will have final 
supervision of the activities of the Sustainability 
Committee. 
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Executives

102-27, 103-2, 103-3

Vinte’s management team and its talented  
collaborators form a team with an average of 

Gender Diversity of
the Management Team

more than 29 years of experience in the housing 
sector, Vinte constantly seeks to boost the future 
generation of company executives:

Corporate Team

Strategic Management Team 
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Corporate Structure 

102-45

Vinte Viviendas Integrales S.A.B. de C.V. is the 
holding company that owns 99.99% of the 6 
subsidiaries that it is comprised of and has a 
75% stake in a joint-venture with BK Partners 
in the Jardines de Mayakoba project. The 
following diagram details the activities of Vinte’s 
subsidiaries:
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Shareholding Structure 

102-7

Ethics Code

102-16, 102-17, 103-2, 103-3, 205-2 

Vinte maintains a commitment to promote the 
company’s ethical values within and outside of 
its facilities, among its employees, contractors 
and suppliers, and its customers in all of the 
places where it operates, transmitting excellence, 
teamwork, passion, commitment, loyalty, and 
honesty as the main basis for behavior and daily 
work.

It is important to mention that Vinte has a telephone 
line that allows its employees to anonymously 
report any action from suppliers, contractors or 
other.

Vinte's Code of Ethics contemplates

Compliance with laws

Conflicts of Interest


Customer Relationship

Marketing and Advertising


Relationship with the Community

Relationship with Suppliers


Fair Competition

Environment


Safety and Hygiene

Land Acquisition


Fortuitous Findings of Culture

Relationship with Anticorruption Authorities


Confidential Information

Use of Charge


Shareholder Shares Total % 
(without expression of nominal value)

Unique Section
Total %

Fixed Capital Variable Capital

Directors and Board Members 200,000 132,882,623 133,082,623 65.88%

Inter-American Investment Corporation 0 1,563,145 1,563,145 0.77%

Proparco 0 13,925,792 13,925,792 6.89%

Public Investors
 0 51,052,188 51,052,188 25.27%

Treasury Stock (Share Buyback Fund) 0 2,397,881 2,397,881 1.19%

Total (Authorized Capital Stock) 200,000 201,821,629 202,021,629 100.00%
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103-2, 103-3, 205-3

Ethics Line

Vinte has an ethics line, reached by email at 
lineaetica@vinte.com or by phone (800) 286 - 
1111, or at extension 1111. The call or e-mail is 
taken confidentially and an investigation of the 
situation is carried out to delineate responsibilities. 
After the investigation, measures are taken that 
act within a framework of justice and equity; 
according to the law.

This ethics line is available to any interested party.

• Cases  received: 14
• Cases  resolved: 14
• Removals: 1
• Administrative Actions: 1
• Feedback Calls: 10
• Dropped due to lack of 

evidence: 2
• Pending follow-up: 0
• Effectiveness: 100%

Ethics Line  2019

Conflicts of Interest

102-25, 103-2, 103-3 

In order to adhere to honest and loyal values 
and protect the interests of the company, Vinte 
collaborators are not allowed to be company 
suppliers, that includes family members or third 
parties whose interests do not align with the 
organization’s. 

Likewise, collaborators are restricted from 
participating as partners or advisors to suppliers 
that sell/provide any type of input or service to  
Vinte, as it is prohibited to take advantage of one’s 
position or function in the company to obtain any 
kind of personal benefits.

Should a collaborator have a family member who 
is the owner of business that is a supplier to Vinte, 
the collaborator must notify, either directly via 
their manager, or to the director of the responsible 
area, or through the Vinte’s Ethics Line.

In accordance with Mexican law, any shareholder, 
director, committee member, and/or secretary 
who has a conflict of interest must refrain from 
participating in the discussion and/or voting on 
the matter in question, since, otherwise, said 
collaborator will be liable for all of the damages 
caused to the company in the event the 
corresponding vote was decisive for the approval 
of an operation.
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Anti-Corruption Strategy

102-26, 103-2, 103-3, 205-1, 205-2, 205-3

Vinte’s Board of Directors is in charge of the Ethics 
Committee. The Ethics Committee is in charge 
of defining the minimum standards of conduct 
that must govern both inside and outside the 
company, which is contained in the Code of Ethics 
and Conduct. Vinte’s Code of Ethics and Conduct 
is defined by the Ethics Committee and written 
by the Internal Control Department. The Ethics 
Committee is also in charge of implementing 
sanctions and corrective actions.

Vinte has 69 Policies and procedures aligned with 
the precepts of the Code of Ethics and Conduct.

Vinte provides a reference framework along with 
ethical principles that help align the behaviors of 
our collaborators in all areas of the company. This 
reference framework is embodied and centered 
around the Code of Ethics and Conduct.

To see all of the policies that are applicable 
to Vinte’s employees, suppliers, and all of its 
subsidiaries, visit our sustainability page. 

We continously evaluate all our operations 
to prevent corruption instances. We provide 
trainings for our collaborators regularly to help 
them recognize the risk of corruption and respond 
adequately. As of the date of publication of this 
report, we haven’t confirmed any corruption 
instance in our team. 
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As a result of our commitment to sustainability, 
Vinte is the only housing developer to have issued 
sustainable bonds in Mexico. The net resources 
of the sustainable bonds are destined to finance 
or refinance sustainable housing projects that 
seek to boost quality of life. For this reason, all 
of the company’s projects meet the following 
requirements:

Social

• Construction of schools within or near the 
developments.

• Proximity to medical centers (clinics, public 
hospitals, and pharmacies).

• Closed access to public transport, good road 
infrastructure, and connectivity.

• Proximity to police stations, as well as security 
at the entrances and surrounding areas.

• Inclusion of designated areas (play areas, 
commercial areas, and green areas).

• Establishment of a civil association for the 
organization of residents.

Environmental

• Use of certain sustainable construction 
materials. 

• Inclusion of lighting equipment (LED), 4 liters 
per flush toilets, efficient irrigation systems 
and sinks, step heaters, and insulating slabs 
or efficient thermal system.

• Construction of infrastructure for water 
treatment, as well as for recharging aquifers 
through wells and ponds that recover at least 
80% of storm water. 

Sustainable 
Bonds

• At the same time, Vinte follows a strict proces 
for analyzing and choosing its projects. This 
process usually takes 90 days to complete 
and is executed by the land bank acquisition 
analysis committee (CAART by its acronym 
in Spanish). This committee is composed 
by members of the management team in 
the operations, finance, and land acquisition 
departments.

The net resources obtained from any issuance 
will be monitored through an internal process 
according to which the balance of said resources 
and their use will be reported on a quarterly basis. 
Likewise, the net resources will be invested in 
securities rated “AAA”, in government securities 
or in short-term fixed-income investment funds 
as they are assigned for the stipulated purposes. 
The CAART will be in charge of managing the 
resources and preparing the reports indicated in 
the reference framework.

Project Evaluation
and Selection Process
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Sustainalytics considers that Vinte has a solid 
sustainability strategy and believes that Vinte’s 
projects emphasize improving the quality of 
life of its residents, leading to sustainable and 
inclusive urban development in Mexican cities, 
demonstrating leadership by achieving green 
building certifications.

On June 10, 2019, Vinte successfully carried 
out the eighth and ninth issuance of stock 
certificates for Ps.700 million. The Public Offering 
date of the issuance was made on June 5th, 
World Environment Day, and consisted of two 
Sustainable Bonds: the first, VINTE 19X, at 
Ps.293 million, with a maturity of 3.7 years and a 
TIIE variable rate 28 + 228 basis points; and the 
second, VINTE 19-2X, for Ps.407 million pesos, 
with a maturity of 7.0 years and at a fixed rate of 
10.0% per year. Both issues have an “A +” rating 
by Verum and HR Ratings without any specific 
guarantee.

The net resources obtained by the issuer from 
the Issuance of stock certificates with the “VINTE 

Basis for Sustainalytics’
Opinion

19X” and “VINTE 19-2X” code, amounted to Ps. 
685,679,512.11 (six hundred eighty-five million 
six hundred seventy-nine thousand five hundred 
and twelve pesos 11/100), were allocated by the 
issuer 100% (one hundred percent) for working 
capital, as described below.

To ensure correct application of the resources 
of this Sustainable Bond, Vinte will follow Vinte’s 
Sustainable Bond Reference Framework (the 
“Reference Framework”), based on the four 
key pillars of the Sustainable Bond Guidelines 
(Sustainability Bond Guidelines or International 
Capital Market Association (ICMA) 2017 SBG):

• Use of Resources

• Project Selection and Evaluation Process

• Resource Management

• Reporting

Below is a table with a use summary of the net 
resources of the issuance:

Eligible Projects Location        Amount

Real Granada Tecamac 105,444,772.22
Real Vizcaya Tecamac 37,589,053.36
Real Navarra Pachuca 53,017,461.28
Real Madeira Pachuca 41,647,507.88
Real Bilbao Playa del Carmen 26,024,097.22
Real Amalfi Playa del Carmen 36,393,274.10
Real Lucerna Playa del Carmen 42,214,827.83
Real Solare Queretaro 100,310,231.32
Real Cayara Queretaro 918,780.23
La Vista Queretaro 43,435,802.05
Queralt Queretaro 534,455.26
Real Castilla Tula 50,571,312.73
Real Valencia Cancun 25,022,524.69
Real Catania Cancun 32,269,253.21
Real Segovia Puebla 61,677,961.94
Montalto Monterrey 23,950,345.98
Real Alcalá Tecamac 4,657,850.83
Total Colocación 685,679,512.11
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At Vinte we have access to financing with an 
average maturity of 6.2 years.

Debt Profile
We continue to maintain our long-term relationship 
with recognized financial institutions and access 
to the debt market.

In 2019, net leverage increased mainly due to the 
acquisition of Jardines de Mayakoba.

• 63% of the debt is sustainable (green and 
social)

• 72% of the net debt is denominated at a fixed rate
• 100% of the debt is in pesos.

• Average debt term is 6.2 years 
• Signed credit lines not available Ps.1,214 

mdp, mainly long-term.
• Available lines/ total lines =  66% 

Debt Drawdown
Schedule

Debt Ps.2,398 thousands of pesos*
(as of December 31, 2019)

Leverage
(2008 - 4Q 2019)

Sustainable
Bonds
Vinte 18X
Vinte 19X
Vinte 19-2X

Bonds
Vinte 17
Vinte 17-2

JV Mayakoba
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Risks

The Company is not exempt of possible adverse 
impacts to its results as a consequence of the 
exposure to certain risks inherent to its operations 
and the environment it operates in. These risks, 
however, are constantly monitored by our Board 
so they can be reduced. Examples of this are:

Market Risks:

In line with the general behavior of the construction 
industry, the operational rhythm  has been 
reduced, along with adapting the number of 
housing lots according to market trends to avoid 
surplus working inventory.

Exchange Rate and Interest Rates:

A majority of debt, around 68% of the total,  is 
anchored at a fixed rate at the end of the year, 
which is denominated entirely in Pesos (same as 
the company’s income).

Civil Responsibility and Other:

Vinte has active corporate insurance policies with 
coverage for strikes, professional liability, and for 
third party, fires, among other types.

Investment Flows:

Vinte maintains a conservative policy on early 
investment in new land reserves, derived from 
the experience gained from adverse market 
situations, such as the decrease in the rate of 
home displacement.

Changes in Mortgage Types:

To take advantage of the changing mix of 
mortgages available to the sector, the company 
has the ability to adjust its product offering to meet 
different circumstances, with up to 7 home models 
per location and the possibility of price adjustments 
by housing size and amenities offered, in order to 
maximize financing for each client.

Partially Variable Expenses:

Part of the administrative and sales expenses are 
structures for bonds based on results at all levels.

Pandemic Diseases:

The Company takes advantage of its diversification 
and operating flexibility to react to the negative 
impact on economic activity from pandemics.

Authorizations:

Acts in advance of the acquisition of new land, 
by taking actions to obtain the respective work 
authorizations within the estimated time limits.

Natural Disasters:

The company contracts insurance  for the 
construction and work on its developments based 
on the expected meteorological behavior.

Liquidity:

Maintains a policy of approximately six weeks of 
cash on hand invested in the short term low-risk 
instruments.
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This report presents Vinte’s main achivements and 
challenges in environmental, social, and corporate 
governance topics for the period comprehended 
between 1 January and 31 December 2019. Our 
last report was published in 2019, covering the 
period comprehended between 1 January and 31 
December 2018.

This report has been prepared in accordance with 
the GRI Standards: Core option. It is important 
to mention that 2020 was the first year that Vinte 
carried out a materiality analysis to identify the 
most relevant issues for the company in terms of 
sustainability. The report includes a description 
of the methodology used for the analysis, as well 
as an interpretation of the results. We believe that 
this analysis will allow for future reports to be 
able to  adhere even more strictly to the material 
standards for the company, which will allow the 
publication to be in accordance with the GRI 
standards.

All of the information presented was provided by 
the responsible areas and internally validated. 
In addition, to give greater certainty to the 
indicators and management of information, an 
external verification was carried out. Attached 
to this document is the verification letter from 
Redes Sociales en Línea Timberlan on the GRI 
methodolody as well as an independent report 
from the external auditors on the financial 
information. 

Preparation
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Basic

Optional

Policies Related 
to Sustainability

103-2

# CODE SUBJECT Year issued or 
updated

1 Code of Ethics Vinte’s Code of Ethics 2019

4 VTE/
POL-4000-0026 Privacy Notice 2015

6 VTE/POL-
INST-0012 Weekly Payroll Factors 2015

10 VTE-POL-0005

Cash restriction, 
customer identification 
and notice submission 
(Anti Money 
Laundering)

2018

18 VTE-POL-0015 Purchase of 
construction materials 2019

19 VTE-POL-0016 Authorization of 
suppliers and creditors 2019

20 VTE-POL-0017 Internet Use and 
information protection 2020

23 VTE-POL-0021 Gifts, hospitality, and 
other courtesies. 2019

24 VTE-POL-0022 Incidents relating to 
administration of staff 2019

25 VTE-POL-0023 Work contracts 2019

36 VTE-POL-0036 Collaboration 
agreement 2017

43 VTE-POL-0044
Certification, 
renovation, and 
housing

2017

50 VTE-POL-0051 Environmental and 
social responsibility 2017

62 VTE-POL-0070 Ethics Line 2018

# CÓDIGO POLÍTICA Año de emisión o 
actualización

30 VTE-POL-0029 Vacaciones 2019
31 VTE-POL-0030 Prestaciones Confidential

32 VTE-POL-0032 Comisiones 2016

35 VTE-POL-0035
Promoción y 
transferencia de 
personal

2016

56 VTE-POL-0059 Plan Maestro 
Comunitario 2018

58 VTE-POL-0063 Tecnología de la 
Información 2018



2019 Annual Sustainability Report 68

102-55

GRI Content Index

Content Topics Page

GRI 101. 2016 Fundamentals 

1. Reporting Principles 66

2. Use of the GRI Standards in the preparation of sustainability reports 66

3. Drafting of statements related to the use of the GRI Standards 66

GRI 102. General Content 2016

1. Organization Profile

102-1 Organization’s name 8

102-2 Activities, brands, products, and services 12, 16, 17, 19, 21, 53

102-3 Headquarter location 8

102-4 Location of operations 26

102-5 Ownership and legal structure 7

102-6 Markets served 25

102-7 Organization size 27, 29, 48, 58, 63

102-8 Information on employees and other workers 48

102-9 Supply chain 44

102-10 Significant changes in the organization and its supply chain
There were no significant changes in the 
organization except for the acquisition of an 
additional 25% of the Jardines Mayakoba trust.

102-11 Precautionary principles and approach 7, 8, 41, 64

102-12 External initiatives 40

102-13 Affiliated associations None.

2. Strategy

102-14 Statement from senior executives responsible for decision-making 3, 5

102-15 Main impacts, risks, and opportunities 3, 5, 32

3. Ethics

102-16 Values, principles, standards, and norms of conduct 58

102-17 Advisory mechanisms and ethical concerns 58



2019 Annual Sustainability Report 69

Content Topics Page

4. Governance

102-18 Governance structure 54, 55

102-19 Delegation of authority 36, 54

102-20 Executive level responsibility for economic, environmental, and social issues 36

102-21 Consultation of interest groups on economic, environmental, and social issues 32, 33, 34

102-22 Composition of the highest governance body and its committees 54

102-23 President of the highest governance body 54

102-24 Nomination and selection of the highest governance body 54

102-25 Conflicts of interest 59

102-26 Role of the highest governance body in the selection of objectives, values, and strategy 54, 60

102-27 Collective knowledge of the highest governance body 54, 55

102-28 Evaluation of the performance of the highest governance body 54, 55

102-29 Identification and management of economic, environmental, and social impacts 32, 33, 34

102-30 Efficacy of risk management processes 64

102-31 Evaluation of economic, environmental and social issues 35

102-32 Role of the highest governance body in preparing sustainability reports 55

102-33 Communication of critical concerns 32, 33, 34, 55

102-34 Nature and total number of critical concerns 32, 33, 34

102-35 Remuneration policies 55

102-36 Processes for determining remuneration 55

102-37 Stakeholders involvement in remuneration

We only involve internal interest groups in the 
remuneration process. Key executive 
compensation is defined by the corporate 
practices committee, which is made up exclusively 
of independent members of our board.

102-38 Total annual compensation ratio  Confidentiality problems

102-39 Ratio of percentage increase in total annual compensation Confidentiality problems

5. Participation of interest groups

102-40 List of interest groups 38, 39

102-41 Collective bargaining agreements 44

102-42 Identification and selection of stakeholders 38, 39

102-43 Approach to stakeholder participation 38,39

102-44 Key issues and concerns 32, 33, 34
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Content Topics Page

6. Practices for preparing reports

102-45 Entities included in the consolidated financial statements 57

102-46 Definition of the contents of the reports and the coverage of the topic 66

102-47 List of material issues 32, 33, 34

102-48 Restatement of information None.

102-49 Changes in reporting 66

102-50 Period covered by the report 66

102-51 Date of the last report 66

102-52 Reporting cycle 66

102-53 Contact information for questions about the report Back cover

102-54 Declaration of report preparation in accordance with the GRI Standards 66

102-55 GRI content index 68

102-56 External verification 75, 76, 77, 78, 79

Material Issue: Corporate governance

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Coverage 32, 33, 34

103-2 Management approach and its components 54, 55, 56, 67

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 54, 55, 56

Material Issue: Business ethics

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Coverage 32, 33, 34

103-2 Management approach and its components 58, 59, 60, 67

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 58, 59, 60

GRI 205: Anticorrupción 2016

205-1 Operations evaluated for risks related to corruption 60

205-2 Communication and training on anti-corruption policies and procedures 58, 60, 67

205-3 Confirmed cases of corruption and measures taken 59, 60
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Content Topics Page

Material Issue: Water management

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Coverage 32, 33, 34

103-2 Management approach and its components 21, 22, 23, 40, 43, 67

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 21, 22, 23, 40, 43

GRI 303: Water and Effluents 2018

303-1 Interaction with water as a shared resource 21, 22, 23, 40, 43

303-2 Management of impacts related to water discharges 40, 43

303-3 Water extraction Information not available. We hope to start 
generating this information in the following year.

303-4 Water discharges Information not available. We hope to start 
generating this information in the following year.

303-5 Water consumption Information not available. We hope to start 
generating this information in the following year.

Material Issue: Impact on the location’s ecology

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Coverage 32, 33, 34

103-2 Management approach and its components 18, 67

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 18

GRI 304: Biodiversidad 2016

304-1 Owned, leased, or managed operations centers located within or adjacent to protected areas or 
areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas

No current operation is located within a protected 
area.

304-2 Significant impacts of activities, products, and services on biodiversity 18

304-3 Habitats protected or restored None.

304-4 Species listed on the IUCN Red List and on national conservation lists whose habitats are in 
areas affected by operations None.

Material Issue: Employment practices

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Coverage 32, 33, 34

103-2 Management approach and its components 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 67

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 48, 49, 50, 51, 52
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Content Topics Page

GRI 401: Employment 2016

401-1 New employee hires and staff turnover 49

401-2 Benefits for full-time employees that are not given to part-time or temporary employees 51

401-3 Parental leave 49, 51

GRI 403: Health and Safety at Work 2018

403-1 Occupational health and safety management system 50

403-2 Hazard Identification, Risk Assessment, and Incident Investigation 50

403-3 Occupational health services 50

403-4 Worker participation, consultation, and communication on health and safety at work 52

403-5 Training of workers on health and safety at work 52

403-6 Promotion of workers' health 52

403-7 Prevention and mitigation of impacts on the health and safety of workers directly linked through 
commercial relationships 50

403-8 Workers covered by an occupational health and safety management system 50

403-9 Work-related injury 48, 50

403-10 Occupational diseases and illnesses 48

GRI 404: Training and Teaching 2016

404-1 Average hours of training per year per employee Information not available. We hope to start 
generating this information in the following year.

404-2 Programs to improve employee skills and transition assistance programs 52

404-3 Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews Information not available. We hope to start 
generating this information in the following year.

Material Issue: Human Rights Management

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Coverage 32, 33, 34

103-2 Management approach and its components 52, 67

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 52

GRI 412: Human Rights Assessment 2016

412-1 Operations subject to human rights reviews or impact assessments- Information not available Information not available. We hope to start 
generating this information in the following year.

412-2 Employee training in human rights policies or procedures
52. Additional information will be generated on the 
number of employees trained in this topic the 
following year.

412-3 Significant investment agreements and contracts with human rights clauses, or subject to human 
rights assessment

Information not available. We hope to start 
generating this information in the following year.
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Content Topics Page

Material Issue: Housing quality

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Coverage 32, 33, 34

103-2 Management approach and its components 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 35, 47, 67

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 35

GRI 416: Health and Safety of Clients 2016

416-1 Evaluation of the impacts on health and safety of each product or services category 19, 47, 52

416-2 Cases of non-compliance related to the impacts on health and safety from the products and 
services categories None to report.

Material Issue: Housing Design

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Coverage 32, 33, 34

103-2 Management approach and its components 42, 43, 44, 67

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 42, 43, 44

Material Issue: Regulatory affairs management

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Coverage 32, 33, 34

103-2 Management approach and its components 18, 37, 67

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 18, 37

Material Issue: A business model that endures the economic cycle

GRI 103: Management Approach 2016

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Coverage 32, 33, 34

103-2 Management approach and its components 7, 53, 67

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 7, 53



2019 Annual Sustainability Report 74

102-56

Verification Letter



2019 Annual Sustainability Report 75

102-56 

Report of the independent auditors 
to the Board of Directors and 
Shareholders of Vinte Viviendas 
Integrales, S.A. B. de C. V. and 
Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial 
statements of Vinte Viviendas Integrales, S.A.B. de 
CV and Subsidiaries (the “Company” or “Vinte”), 
which correspond to the consolidated statements 
of the financial position as of December 31, 2019, 
2018, and 2017, the consolidated statements 
of profit and other comprehensive income, 
the consolidated statements of changes in 
stockholders’ equity, and the consolidated 
statements of cash flows, corresponding to 
the years ending on those dates, as well as the 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
which include a summary of the main accounting 
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements reasonably present, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of Vinte Viviendas Integrales, SAB de CV 
and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2019, 2018 
and 2017, as well as their consolidated financial 
performance and their consolidated cash flows for 
the years ending on those dates, in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS” or “IFRSs”), issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board.

External
Audit

Basis of this opinion

We have carried out our audits in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing (“ISA”). 
Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Independent Auditors 
Responsibilities section regarding the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of our report. We 
are independent of the Entity in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics for Accounting Professionals 
of the Council of International Standards of Ethics 
for Accountants (“IESBA Code of Ethics”) and with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Mexican Institute of Public Accountants (“Code 
of Ethics of the IMCP”), and we have fulfilled the 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the IESBA Code of Ethics and with the Code of 
Ethics of the IMCP.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained provides a sufficient and adequate basis 
for our opinion.

Key issues from the audit  

The key audit issues are those matters that, in 
our professional judgment, were of the utmost 
importance in our audit of the 2019 consolidated 
financial statements. These issues have been 
addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole and 
in forming our opinion of them, and we do not 
express a separate opinion on such matters.

Book value of real estate inventories

For the determination of the book value of real 
estate inventories and construction in process, 
Vinte’s administration makes judgments and 
assumptions so that these are valued at the lowest 
net realization value or cost of acquisition and 
development, in accordance with the International 
Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 2, “Inventories”. This 
requires that the management of Vinte consider, 
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among other things, its internal control, it must 
estimate the sale prices, the demand of the real 
estate project, in its case the granting of subsidies, 
the costs and expected profit margins on its real 
estate projects, to be able to determine possible 
drops in value in real estate inventories.

The estimated future costs of work to be completed 
are subject to a number of variables including the 
design of the home or residential property, market 
conditions, the obligations contracted with the 
municipalities or localities where the projects are 
being carried out, the work materials, and costs 
of subcontractors.

There is also a risk that the costs of real estate 
inventories and construction-in-progress have 
been improperly capitalized or improperly 
allocated to a project, resulting in erroneous 
project profit margin per project or development.

Our audit procedures in this regard were as 
follows:

1. We carry out analytical procedures to validate 
the adequacy of the current and budgeted 
profit margin, used both in the current phase 
of the life of the project and in its entirety.

2. We made a sample of certain costs incurred in 
the construction in process, and we checked 
that those costs were accommodated in the 
project and phase of the appropriate real 
estate inventory, as well as that they met 
the definition of capitalizable costs to the 
real estate inventory, we also reviewed the 
proportion of expenses and costs recognized 
as cost of sales for the year with respect to 
residential properties sold.

3. We compare the margin recognized during the 
year of the houses or residential properties sold 
against the projected margin of the lifespan or 
business analysis.

We tested the key judgments used in the model 
employed by the Company’s management, with 
respect to the sale prices and estimated costs to 

be completed, which support the book value of 
the real estate inventories. We have compared 
this information against sales price estimates, 
costs, and historical sales information.

Stages of Business Combination
- CIB / 2185 Trust

As mentioned in Note 1 of the consolidated 
financial statements, on October 17, 2019, Vinte 
acquired an additional 25% interest in the assets 
of the CIB / 2185 Trust (the “Trust”), by entering 
into several agreements and contracts. As a 
result of the foregoing, Vinte obtained control 
over the relevant activities that mainly consist 
of the operation and administration of the Trust, 
for which the Administration consolidated the 
statements of financial position of the Trust as 
of December 31, 2019 and the statements of 
income as of the date of the acquisition of power 
and control, October 17, 2019.

In accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, 
Vinte carried out a business combination in 
stages, as of December 17, 2014, it only owned 
50% and subsequently, on October 17, 2019, it 
acquired an additional 25%.

Given the above, we identify the risk that the 
Company does not properly record the preliminary 
allocation of the acquisition cost in the values of 
the net assets acquired and that are subject to 
measurement in accordance with IFRS 3.

Our audit procedures in this regard were as 
follows:

1. We reviewed all agreements and contracts 
that support the acquisition and the cash flow 
of the transaction.

2. We reviewed Vinte’s control analysis of the 
Trust under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

3. We reviewed the preliminary allocation of 
the acquisition cost on the values of the net 
assets acquired in accordance with IFRS 3, 
with the assistance of our specialists in fair 
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value valuations, to obtain an understanding 
of the application of certain approaches and 
related valuation techniques with the purchase 
price allocation analysis (“Purchase Price 
Allocation” or PPA).

4. We reviewed the analysis carried out by 
the entity’s administration to determine 
the fair value of real estate inventories, the 
consideration transferred on the acquisition 
date, the amount of any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree, and in a business 
combination carried out in stages, the 
reasonable value on the acquisition date of 
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the 
acquiree’s equity, in accordance with IFRS 3 
and IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement.

5. We verified the working role of the consolidation 
including the Trust figures, from the moment 
that Vinte obtained control.

6. We verified the arithmetic coherence of 
the calculations made by the Company’s 
management.

7. We reviewed the disclosures included in the 
consolidated financial statements.

Another Issue 

We draw attention to Note 26 subsequent events 
in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements, where management describes the 
effects known to date caused by the COVID-19 
pandemic and the repercussions on its operation 
during the first months of 2020. It also describes 
the Company’s immediate plans and the difficulty 
of reliably evaluating all the potential future effects 
that it could have on its consolidated financial 
situation, due to the short time elapsed and the 
great uncertainty derived from this extraordinary 
health emergency situation. Our opinion has not 
been modified in relation to this issue.

Information other than the 
consolidated financial statements 
and the independent auditors report 

The Company’s management is responsible for 
the additional information. Additional information 
includes the following: i) the annual report and the 
information that will be incorporated in the Annual 
Report that the Entity is required to prepare 
pursuant to Article 33 Section I, subsection b) of 
the Fourth Title, Chapter One of the Character 
Provisions General Applicable to the Issuers and 
to other Participants of the Stock Market in Mexico 
and to the Instructions accompanying those 
provisions (the “Provisions”). The Annual Report 
was obtained for our reading as of the date of this 
audit report; and ii) other additional information, 
which is a measure that is not required by IFRS, 
and has been incorporated in this report with the 
purpose of providing an additional explanation 
to its investors and principle readers of its 
consolidated financial statements on the level of 
leverage in respect to EBITDA (“Earnings Before 
Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization”) 
of the Company, this information is presented in 
Note 15.

Our opinion of the consolidated financial 
statements will not cover additional information 
and we will not express any form of assurance 
about it.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements, our responsibility will be to 
read additional information, when available, and 
when we do, consider whether that information 
contained therein is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the audit, or appears to 
contain a material error. When we read the Annual 
Report we will issue a note about the annual report, 
as required in Article 33 Section I, subsection 
b) Section 1.2. of the Provisions. Additionally, 
and in relation to our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the additional information, which in this case is 
not required by IFRS and in doing so consider 
whether the information contained therein is 
materially inconsistent with 
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the consolidated financial statements or with our 
knowledge obtained during the audit, or that 

appears to contain a material error. If, based on 
our work, we conclude that the other information 
contains a. significant error, we are obliged to 
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of the Company’s 
management and those responsible 
for corporate governance in relation to 
the consolidated financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with IFRS, and for the internal control that 
management deems necessary to allow the 
preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements free from material error, due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, 
management is responsible for evaluating the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as appropriate, issues related to going 
concern and using the going concern accounting 
principle, except if the administration intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, 
or there are no other realistic alternatives.

Those charged with governance of the Company 
are responsible for supervising the Company’s 
consolidated financial reporting process.

Responsibilities of independent 
auditors in relation to the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
that the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material error, due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an audit report containing our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always 
detect a material error when it exists. Errors 

may be due to fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in aggregate, they can 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions users make based on the consolidated 
financial statements.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

• Identify and evaluate the risks of material error 
in the consolidated financial statements, due 
to fraud or error, we design and apply audit 
procedures to respond to such risks, and we 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide the basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material error due 
to fraud is higher than in the case of a material 
error due to an error, since fraud can involve 
collusion, falsification, deliberate omissions, 
intentionally erroneous manifestations, or the 
nullification of internal control.

• Obtain knowledge of the internal control 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate depending 
on the circumstances and not to express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control. 

• Evaluate the adequacy of the accounting 
policies applied and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates and the corresponding 
information disclosed by management.

• Conclude on the adequacy of the use by 
management of the accounting principle 
of a going concern and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, we conclude on whether 
or not there is material uncertainty related 
to facts or conditions that may generate 
significant doubts on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that there is material uncertainty, we are 
required to draw attention in our audit report 
to the related information disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are not appropriate, to express a 
modified opinion. Our conclusions are based 
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on the audit evidence obtained to date in 
our audit report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company have a 
going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation of the 
structure and content of the consolidated 
financial statements, including the disclosed 
information, and whether the consolidated 
financial statements represent relevant 
transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves a fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient and adequate evidence 
in relation to the financial information of the 
Subsidiaries or their business activities within 
Vinte to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for 
the direction, supervision, and performance of 
the Vinte audit. We are solely responsible for 
our audit opinion.

We communicate the Company’s corporate 
governance officers in relation to, among other 
things, the planning, scope, and timing of the 
audit and the significant findings thereof, as well 
as any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify in the course of the audit.

We also provide those responsible for the 
Company’s corporate governance with a statement 
that we have complied with the applicable ethical 
requirements regarding independence and have 
communicated all relationships and other matters 
that can reasonably be expected to affect them, 
our independence, and where appropriate, the 
corresponding safeguards.

Among the issues that have been the subject of 
communications with those responsible for the 
Company’s governance, we determined that they 
have been of the utmost importance in the audit 
of the consolidated financial statements for the 
fiscal year 2019 and that they are, consequently, 
the key audit issues. We describe those issues 
in this audit report, unless statutory or regulatory 
provisions prohibit public disclosure of the issue 

or, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that an issue should not be reported in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so 
could reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits.

Galaz, Yamazaki, Ruiz Urquiza, S. C.
Miembro de Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited

C. P. C. Roberto Velasco Gómez
Ciudad de México, México

11 de mayo de 2020
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as of December 31st, 2019, 2018, and 2017 

(in thousands of pesos)

Assets Notes 2019 2018 2017

Current Assets:

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 6 $252,291 $329,728 $283,849

Accounts receivable 7 394,309 328,950 322,772

Accounts receivable from Mayakoba Trust No CIB/2185 -Related party - 41,488 23,042

Real estate Inventory 8 2,850,037 2,462,798 2,441,421

Prepayments and other assets 9 151,244 61,451 76,596

Total Current Assets 3,647,881 3,224,415 3,147,680

Non-Current Assets:

Real Estate inventory 8 4,079,500 2,946,832 1,802,475

Prepayment and other accounts receivable 9 7,350 32,356 44,787

Property, plant, and equipment 10 108,688 104,733 48,087

Investment in joint venture 11 - 54,372 50,477

Other non-current assets 12 86,781 39,153 23,178

Long-term receivables from sale of commercial lots 7 394 3,660 4,776

Total Non-Current Assets 4,282,713 3,181,106 1,973,780

Total Assets $7,930,594 $6,405,521 $5,121,460

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt 14 $60,000 $60,000 $80,000

Obligation secured by sales of future receivables contracts 13 214,718 24,379 88,521

Accounts payable to land suppliers 170,946 215,038 125,736

Accounts payable to suppliers 280,130 225,073 188,277

Various creditors, subcontractors and other 16 252,551 167,761 144,078

Leasing Liabilities 10,925 - -

Customer prepayments 136,003 105,895 92,377

Accumulated expenses and taxes 17 100,068 121,352 102,294

Income tax 11,021 4,920 7,221

Profit sharing payables 16,330 17,939 10,282

Total Current Liabilities 1,252,692 942,357 838,786

Non-current Liabilites:

Long-term debt 14 2,285,438 1,957,222 1,172,954

Employee benefits 4,658 2,625 2,119

Accounts payable to land suppliers 66,736 88,641 36,190

Leasing Liabilities 31,911 - -

Differed income tax 23 712,024 566,097 526,418

Total non-current liabilities 3,100,767 2,614,585 1,737,681

Total Liabilities 4,353,459 3,556,942 2,576,467

Stockholder’s’ Equity

Capital social 18 1,212,281 862,281 862,281

Reserve for share repurchase 18 147,489 56,403 51,942

Retained Earnings 2,141,228 1,929,895 1,630,770

Non-controlling interests 76,137 - -

Total Stockholder’s Equity 3,577,135 2,848,579 2,544,993

Total Liabilities and Stockholder’s Equity $7,930,594 $6,405,521 $5,121,460
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity 
For the years ended on December 31st 2019, 2018, and 2017 

(In thousands of pesos)

Capital Stock Reserve for 
share repurchase

Retained 
Earnings

Non-controlling 
interests Total 

Balance as of January 1st, 2017 $862,281 $89,680 $1,355,218 - $2,307,179
Reissuance of shares, Net - (37,738) - - (37,738)
Dividends Paid - - (163,744) - (163,744)
Comprehensive Income - - 439,296 - 439,296

Balance as of December 31st, 2017 862,281 51,942 1,630,770 - 2,544,993
Repurchased shares, Net - 4,461 - - 4,461
Dividends Paid - - (209,029) - (209,029)
Comprehensive Income - - 508,154 - 508,154

Balance as of December  31st, 2018 862,281 56,403 1,929,895 - 2,848,579
Capital Contribution 350,000 100,000 (100,000) - 350,000
Repurchased shares, Net - (8,914) - - (8,914)
Dividends Paid - - (212,251) - (212,251)
Comprehensive Income - - 523,584 9,134 532,718
Non-controlling interests - - - 67,003 67,003

Balance as of Decemberl 31st, 2019 $1,212,281 $147,489 $2,141,228 $76,137 $3,577,135

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Other Income 
for years ending on December 31st 2019, 2018 y 2017 

(In thousands of pesos, except for earnings per share, which is in pesos)

Notes 2019 2018 2017

Real estate and other sales revenue 19 y 20 $3,744,611 $3,401,524 $3,123,384

Cost of real estate and other sales 20 (2,586,397) (2,301,680) (2,122,975)

Gross Profit 1,158,214 1,099,844 1,000,409

General and Administrative Expenses 22 (213,980) (182,751) (155,000)

Management and Planning expenses 22 (147,971) (129,600) (117,414)

Sales Expenses 22 (139,837) (119,076) (112,789)
Financing Expenses (Net from capitalized interest $162,026, $68,511  and $65,696,  

respectively) 21 (64,341) (86,104) (83,227)

Interest Income 34,463 30,646 15,816

Interest from joint- ventures 11 10,347 3,895 (5,433)

Other income 106,201 18,655 25,615

Other expenses (17,416) (21,966) (10,817)

Earnings before tax 725,680 613,543 557,160

Income tax 23 (192,962) (105,389) (117,864)

Consolidated Net and Comprehensive Income $532,718 $508,154 $439,296

Earnings attributable to controlling interest 523,584 - -

Earnings attributable to non-controlling interest 9,134 - -

Weighted average number of shares 198,804,717 189,153,981 189,153,981

Earnings per share (basic and diluted) $2.68 $2.68 $2.32



Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows 
For the years ended on December 31st 2019, 2018, and 2017 

(In thousands of pesos)

2019 2018 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Consolidated net and comprehensive income $532,718 $508,154 $439,296

Adjusted for:

Income tax recognized in the income statement 192,962 105,389 117,864

Depreciation and amortization 43,222 25,043 19,002

Retirement of property, furnishing,, and equipment 9,022 405 658

Interests in Joint Ventures (10,347) (3,895) 5,433

Capitalized cost of real estate inventory 236,969 72,289 68,318

Financing costs recognized in the income statement 64,341 70,162 67,605

Amortization of debt issuance costs 9,154 15,942 15,622

Interest Income (34,463) (30,646) (15,816)

1,043,578 762,843 717,982

Changes in working income:

Increase in accounts receivable (20,605) (23,508) (13,558)

Increase in real-estate inventory (1,688,568) (1,075,997) (797,173)

(Increase) decrease in other current assets (64,787) 27,707 82,369

(Decrease) increase in providers (10,940) 178,549 121,713

Increase in various creditors, subcontractor,, and others 84,790 23,683 5,799

Increase in customer prepayments 30,108 13,518 14,602

(Decrease) increase in accumulated taxes and expenses (21,284) 19,058 13,991

(Decrease) increase in profit sharing payables (1,609) 7,657 (5,174)

Increase in benefits to employees 2,033 506 558

Increase in liabilities from leasing 53,973 - -

Income tax paid (40,934) (68,011) (46,551)

Interest received 34,463 30,646 15,816

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (599,782) (103,349) 110,374

Cash Flows from Investment Activities


Investment in property, plant, and equipment (33,755) (70,539) (19,543)

Leasing payments (11,137) - -

Advance payments for property and equipment - - (11,784)

Investment in other assets (73,661) (27,661) (11,497)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (118,553) (98,200) (42,824)

Cash Flows from financing activities

Proceeds from debt 3,492,235 2,952,950 1,956,354

Loans paid (3,851,100) (2,976,350) (1,889,507)

Cash collected from issuance of bonds 700,000 800,000 500,000

Notes paid - - (200,000)

Obligations for sale of future collection rights contracts 573,211 374,142 205,578

Payment of obligations for sale of future collections rights contracts (382,872) (438,284) (211,338)

Increase in share capital 350,000 - -

Proceeds from non-controlling interests 67,003 - -

Reissuance of shares (100,000) (77,826) (39,976)

Repurchase of shares 91,086 82,287 2,238

Payment of expenses through debt issuance (22,073) (28,274) (24,758)

Dividends paid (212,251) (209,029) (163,744)

Interest paid (64,341) (232,188) (136,116)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 640,898 247,428 (1,269)

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash (77,437) 45,879 66,281

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at the beginning of the year 329,728 283,849 217,568

Cash, Cash equivalents, and restricted cash at end of the period $252,291 $329,728 $283,849
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Annual Review of Adherence to 
the Sustainable Bond Reference 

Framework
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Domingo Valdés
Chief Financial Officer
domingo.valdes@vinte.com

Corporate Headquarters
Downtown Santa Fe, Av. Santa Fe 
428, Torre 1, Piso 12, Oficina 1201, 
Col. Alcaldía Cuajimalpa, Ciudad 
de México, México. C.P. 05349

Administrative Offices
Av. Vía Real, Mz. 16, Lt. 1, Fracc. 
Real del Sol, Tecámac, Estado de 
México. C.P. 55770

Telephone: +52 (55) 5010-7360

Gonzalo Pizzuto
Finance Team
gonzalo.pizzuto@vinte.com


